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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability
nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the
emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the
companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and
other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated
by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in
gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have access to
the GEM website at www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM for the purpose of giving information with regard to VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED.
The directors of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading; (ii) there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this report misleading,; and (iii) all opinions expressed in this report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.

ERBAEREZMABARAA ([BRA])
AIER ([RIER]) 2BE

AERNDATESREABZATRHM—BELITZTE AEEARR LT ZAABRAEBEBENLCE FEAFR KRR
R BN HAER LT ZARATHEANAMERZSAALEXEB2TXIARMFTEAR - FRREZATET#
RERZEAAZEERR AECBEEAFZERRTFHRERE-AXRZESEARRAMIBERTAEREE
EEXRHMBERREE

HRAXRETARFECHERMR FRAXREECRSTHEBRNBIMEIRNEEZBFAZIRAZT S RBIAR
ARELIRBEAEREE2RSSASRBEEZTS-

AR B e EN I E T AR RN AAERMR 2 EBAPENZE LT R -~ REFESEEERENEN
RAMBHER B ARREZALTEEIZREAMEAERA Ewww.hkgem.com' LERBRAIER LT HRITAZR
HEH-

BERMERZTERAGIH L REZNEHTRE HREG T BN T EREM B WHEXR T T AR E
EEHHEMFBD AT MELLAGREZEADRM SR EATRKAEERE(E

AR ETIBIRBIZRESZ LR R EIEREABENBRREERABAZCEN B2 ERFRAAEEFLH A
EHREARESAEZHEE - BEE2RREEZERNFAICEFLEL —IEEBHEER RIREMARANE (VKB E AT
HEHEESBEATEGBERL TE AERGHK D (L EEREAEMEE AR AREFEEIAATELRE R
(i) N BEAREN ) ERTEFREFZZEERTEL WA FEIEZ B EFBRRBEKIR



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2005

CONTENTS
B &%

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Financial Highlights

Management Discussion and Analysis

Comparison of Business Objectives
with Actual Business Progress

Profile of Directors and Senior
Management

Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance Report
Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Balance Sheet
Balance Sheet

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Notes to the Financial Statements

Five year Financial Summary

12

13

28

32

37

a1

98

60

61

62

63

64

66

135

ATEH

IREE

MEHE

ERETRRAT

SBHEHERENERILE

EEERE

ERERRE

EBERE

GREREARRK

AEARR

GEWBR

GEEGZERR

GEBERER

R 35 4R 2R Bt ot

LFEMBRE



BERREEARAT —TFAFFH

CORPORATE INFORMATION
A EEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive directors:

Mr. William Xia GUO

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG

Non-executive Directors:
Dr. FENG Tao

Mr. WU Xin

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. WU Ming Yu

Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS

Mr. WANG Hong Bo

REGISTERED OFFICE

Scotia Centre

4th Floor, P.O. Box 2804
George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE

No.3 Jinzhuang

Si Ji Qing, Haidian District
Beijing, PC 100089

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 707, Empress Plaza

17-19 Chatham Road South

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.venturepharm.com

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. ZHANG Ling ACCA

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. William Xia GUO
Ms. ZHANG Ling AcCA

Exg
HITEE:
MEEE
REHRBL

FHITEFE:
HEE L
RRFTE
SRMIE L

BUIIFHTEF:
REAE A

Paul CONTOMICHALOS%E 4
FTAEEE

=R

Scotia Centre

4th Floor, P.O. Box 2804
George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman lIslands

I E R
b=
BEENES
% H35%
4% : 100089

ERTEEEME
B

NER L HE
RRER17-19 5%
wEEST0T B

ANk

http://www.venturepharm.com

DREME
5k %% 22 £ AccA

BREARR
B LA
ik ¥ & T ACcA



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2005

CORPORATE INFORMATION
A EEH

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. William Xia GUO

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANTS
Ms. ZHANG Ling ACCA

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Mr. WU Ming Yu

Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS
Mr. WANG Hong Bo

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Royal Bank of Canada (Asia) Limited
Agricultural Bank of China, Beijing Branch
Shenzhen Development Bank, Beijing Branch

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Bank of Butterfield International (Cayman) Ltd.
Butterfield House, Fort Street

P.O. Box 705

George Town, Grand Cayman

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Standard Registrars Limited

Level 28

Three Pacific Place

1 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISOR
Beijing Dayang Law Firm

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

GEM STOCK CODE
8225

EEXE
BEXRE

EERETE
ik ¥ & T ACcA

BEREEERE
REAE A

Paul CONTOMICHALOS%E 4
FAREE

FEERRT
MERERRT (M) ERAT]
RERERIT AERDTT
ARINBERRT AERDTT

ROBFEZEE

Bank of Butterfield International (Cayman) Ltd.
Butterfield House, Fort Street

P.O. Box 705

George Town, Grand Cayman

Cayman lIslands

EEROBFELIRE

FREIMSFETLERAA
B

EFRBRIR

AN Bi5 38

2812

EEERE
b 5 KOF Bl A5 A

B BED

Eike R T
RERFFEATED
BEAEGHED

Al R AR 4 15K
8225



BERREEARAT —TFAFFH

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FHHE

For the Group (Venturepharm Laboratories Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries) 2004 was a year of
transition, while 2005 was a year of execution and
accomplishment. The Group had made tremendous
progress toward further establishing itself as an Asia’s
leading CPO (Contract Pharmaceutical Organization)

evolving from a pharmaceutical technology company.

Three years’ ago, with the mission of becoming the world-
class pharmaceutical power-house, the Company’s
executive management team initiated a long-term 5-year
business transition plan aiming at transforming the Group
from a domestic leading provider of new drug licenses into
a global pharmaceutical full service company, integrating
drug development service with manufacturing and product
distribution services. The new full-integrated service
business model will allow company to enjoy service profits
not only from R&D but also from contract manufacturing
and contract commercialization. The new platform for growth
will break through the previous bottleneck at which the
company enjoyed a high profit margin but limited scale of
revenues and profits.

To that end, over the past year, we have focused primarily
on improving the infrastructure throughout our organization.
During the transformation period, we have to go through
the proverbial period of short-term pain for long term gain.
The majority of profits derived from our rich pipelines will
experience a delay in profit earning before going through
the commercialization stage. The achievements and the
resulting challenging opportunities of the past year
demonstrated that we are on the right track to greater

SuccCess.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

In 2005, Venturepharm moved with priority purpose to
achieve growth of markets share and branding building.
The Group recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB42,157,000 for the year ended 31 December 2005,
representing an increase of approximately 16.6% as
compared to RMB36,157,000 that was recorded last year.
And a drop of net profit from RMB10,599,000 as at 31
December 2004 to RMB5,516,000 as at 31 December 2005.
This was partially due to the applying of new accounting
stantdards and partially due to the transforming strategy.
Basic earnings per share were RMBO0.0157 (2004:
RMBO0.0297).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND ACHIEVEMENTS OF YEAR 2005

After great efforts of five years, the Company started
offering integrated services of pharmaceutical development,
manufacturing and commercialization from 2004. Integrated
services enable the Group to bring drug candidates from
pre-clinical stages through to clinical trials, and ultimately,
commercialization.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

1. Consolidate the leading position in pharmaceutical
development service (PDS) and new product supplier.

Our steadfast commitment to R&D is critical to our
long-term success in the pharmaceutical industry.
Hainan Sinican Research Institute of the Group
cooperated with other research labs of Venturepharm
Group all over the world and was the first in China to
complete the basic R&D work in manufacturing Tamiflu,
a branded drug from Roche. According to WTO
intellectual laws, if there is a crisis of avian flu,
Venturepharm can rapidly manufacture Tamiflu by
noticing the patent holding owner.
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Hainan Sinican Research Institute is filing the
production permit in Hainan and is preparing the
manufacture both the API (Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredient) and dosages. The Institute is also preparing
filing patent for the research outcome overseas and to
develop better drugs against influenza on the basis of
the research on oseltamivir phosphate, the APl of
Tamiflu.

Expanded our R&D capabilities as a leading institution
in nature therapeutic products by establishing Sinican
TCM Research Institute.

Venturepharm has substantially expanded our R&D
capabilities. We successfully completed the
establishment of Sinican TCM Reseach Institute and
built a new drug discovery platform from natural
products. In this way, we will be able to expand our
product line that covers both synthetic chemical drugs
and those made from natural products. The success
of this strategy is evidenced by the several filings of
patents in this field by Sinican TCM Research Institute.

Our clinical research base-VPS is China’s leading

clinical research organization.

Our clinical research base-VPS is among the firsts to
adopt good clinical practice (GCP) in China. It is
currently a leading CRO (clinical research organization)
in China. It is also the most prestigious CRO in
traditional Chinese medicine. Its commitment of most
valuable and cost effective services has attracted many
clients both in China and overseas. It had completed
over 80 projects covering 13 therapeutic areas and
got approvals from SFDA for over 10 imported drug
license application. Currently it is conducting over 50

projects among which 4 are for new drugs.
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The VPS services not only include Phase | - IV clinical
trials and bio-equivalence studies, but also preclinical
studies of pharmacology, pharmaco-dynamics, toxicity
and drug safety assessment.

Global R&D Services or Technology Transfer

In the recent years, the global pharmaceutical industry
is facing challenges resulting from competition and
increased R&D expenditure. In order to strengthen its
competition edge, the pharmaceutical industry
desperately needs strategies to bring down the cost
of drug discovery/development. Therefore, outsourcing
has become one of the most favored strategies being
adopted.

Facing such opportunities, Venturepharm adjusted its
marketing strategy to strengthen and implement
overseas business by establishment of the Global
Business Development Division, which targets oversea
pharmaceutical companies by providing fully integrated
pharmaceutical services that include PDS
(Pharmaceutical Development Service), APl (Active
Pharmaceutical Ingredient), CRS (Contract Research
Service), RAS (Regulatory Affairs Service), CMS
(Contract Manufacturing Service) and marketing/sales

of foreign pharmaceutical products in China.

The success of this strategy move is evident and the
year of 2005 became an international expanding year
for the Group. We have signed a number of contracts
with leading pharmaceutical company in US for ANDA.
We also signed contracts in formulation/API
technologies, clinical trial service to global

pharmaceutical companies.
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Contract Manufacturing Services

With the implementation of the Company’s strategy and the
infrastructure improvements that have been put into place,
Venturepharm had achieved significant success in contract
manufacturing services. First, we had entered into strategic
alliances with 7 new contract manufactory organizations
which are under the Group’s total quality control. Second,
we had successfully transferred 6 products to more
appropriate manufactory sites by overcome all difficulties.
These moves had greatly improved the supply chain and
cost structure of Venturepharm.

Contract Commercialization Services

VP-Mart(Venturepharm-Mart), the commercialization unit of
the Company, is a commercial solutions provider that offers
sales and marketing services designed to accelerate the
success of pharmaceutical products. VP-Mart has
developed an innovative business model that enables us
to “actively” search specific regions of the country for
qualified, “on-profile” marketing and sales partners or

agents both quickly and cost-effectively.

In 2005, VP-Mart has built more than 12 territory sales
forces, and teamed up with more than 15 sales agents to
help launch more than 8 products for leading
pharmaceutical companies in China.

VP-Mart employed a strategy that strengthen the business
in certain therapeutic areas, allowing us to fully take
advantage of the most valuable resources. For example,
CNS and dermatology therapeutic products were
emphasized as the leading products to the franchised
partners or agents. This strategy had evidenced major
success. For example, the profadine, which is currently
producing by Sinoway, had become top domestic made
products in replacing Loratadine.
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In addition, we had teamed up with a leading marketing
company in dermatologic products, Profex Inc to form a
company, namely, Novarderm Inc. that is dedicated to the
promotion of our dermatologic product line.

OPPORTUNITIES FOR GROWTH

In the recent years, the global pharmaceutical industry is
facing challenges resulting from the loss of sales to generics
due to the best-selling blockbuster drugs going off patent.
In order to strengthen its drying product pipelines, the
global pharmaceutical industry has to conduct more R&D

activities in drug discovery.

Under such serious situation, the pharmaceutical industry
desperately needs strategies to bring down the cost of
drug discovery and outsourcing has become one of the
most favored strategies being adopted globally. There are
dramatically increase for pharmaceutical outsourcing.
Pharmaceutical companies are spending US$90 billion on
drug development, with over US$13 billion being
outsourced.

The most important cost-benefit of outsourcing is that global
majors can outsource processes related to biology,
chemistry, screening, and lead optimization, manufacture,
to name a few. Herein lie the opportunities for a spate of
companies focusing on contract research in drug discovery.

Our commitment to quality, efficiency and service innovation
fit the business model of R&D and manufacturing
outsourcing market as evidence that we have win many
new business that are reflected in our steady growth in
backlog.
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DRIVING FORWARD

As the Group had made significant progress with the growth
of market shares and company brand building in 2005, it
was clear that the Company has entered a new stage for
financial growth as the business transaction is approaching
the final stage. In order to achieve financial growth, first,
we will focus on creating an immediately profitable
commercial platform and infrastructure: Venturepharm-Mart.
Second, we will strengthen the measures for global

expansion by providing R&D and manufacturing services.

There many challenges facing the participants of the global
drug discovery contract research markets. Among them
are credibility, culture fit, strategic fit and moving up the
value chain. However, we understand what an exciting and
compelling opportunity lay ahead. The global life sciences
markets are one of the most robust and exciting markets in
the world. We could see how strongly Venturepharm can
be positioned in this market.

Venturepharm’s R&D strategies to the outsourcing
opportunities are “me-too” in generics, “me-better” in
specialty, and “me-only’ in innovation. In the R&D short-
term strategy, Venturepharm focuses on innovation rather
the invention, improving the version of marketed
compounds. In the R&D long term goal, Venturepharm strive

to create a series of new drugs.

Another important strategy of Venturepharm in meeting the
outsourcing opportunities is to move up the value chain.
Our drug discovery contract research work not only provide
chemistry-related work, preclinical studies, formulation,
clinical trials, but also move up to more lucrative areas
such as discovery of new chemical entities (NCEs).
Venturepharm has 6 NCEs that constitute the platform for

cooperation or alliance in a higher profile.
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In summary, the global pharmaceutical industry in the
recent past has been under the pressure to strengthen its
drying product pipelines by outsourcing its R&D and
manufacturing to developing countries to reduce cost.
China is a major target for outsourcing service due to its
lower cost structure. Therefore, the management team of
Venturepharm Group has a vision to be the leading provider
of drug development to the international pharmaceutical
industry.

APPRECIATION

| wish to acknowledge our many partners who provide us
with ongoing encouragement of our business strategy.
Without the contribution of our employees, the trust of our
clients and the support of our shareholders, we could not
have progressed this far. With the vision and mission in
mind, we are in attempt to build up a world class Chinese’s
integrated pharmaceutical company.

William Xia GUO
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
27 March 2006
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT
ME#E

Year ended 31 December
BEZ+t=-A=1+—HILEE

2005 2004
—EERF —ZETNF
RMB RMB
AR AR ¥
Results E4

Revenue g 25 42,157,000 36,157,000
Profit for the year F N5 Fl 5,644,000 10,683,000

Assets and Liabilities EERER
Total Assets B E 128,465,000 108,305,000
Total Liabilities wEE 13,490,000 6,170,000
Shareholders’ equity f% =R 2% 114,975,000 102,135,000

REVENUE BY BUSINESS SERVICES (~MB'000)
BEXBBEE D 2 WE (ARKFT)

B 2004 API | 45
I 2005 B BB S 1,349
Royalty income 1,032
LEE T N 1,322
Import registration services 1,198

#OFEMARRS M 351

CRS _ 5,346
Fa R T RS 14,085
i | 1 1
ZEYRE RS 13,434
s | 111
RATEE R 11,666
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEESR RSN

OPERATING RESULTS

Financial Review

Results

The group organized into full services business models
that cover the entire gamut of pharmaceutical chain
while maintaining the leading position on R&D sector.
For the year ended 31 December 2005, consolidated
turnover increased approximately 16.6% or from
RMB36,157,000 to RMB42,157,000, which includes
income from approximately RMB25,100,000 technology
transfer and contracted pharmaceutical development
services and approximately RMB17,057,000 deriving
from clinical research services and other business
activities. The increase in turnover was primarily from
clinical research services (“CRS”).

The turnover analysis of Venturepharm for the year
2005 has clearly demonstrated the successful transition
of Venturepharm from a company, which has been
engaging R&D and technology transfer only, into a
fully integrated pharmaceutical services company,
which dedicated to R&D, services, manufacturing and
sales altogether.
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ER R FEARTS

The Group’s overall gross profit margin was 52.3% for
the year under review compared with that of 56.3% for
the last year. The decrease in gross profit margin was
mainly attributable to our business transforming
strategy which result in the decreasing proportion from
PDS, a line of service which has high profit margin but
limited revenue and profit scalability.

Turnover contribution from six lines of services of the
Group:

Revenue Breakdown for Year 2005
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General and administrative expenses increased by
39.8% to approximately RMB16,585,000. The increase
was attributable mainly to the increase in staff cost as
a result of increasing staff number, increasing of
general office expenses caused by expansion of
organization and dramatically increase in allowance
for trade receivables. Other revenue decreased
dramatically by 68.2% to approximately RMB949,000.
The decrease was attributable mainly to the decline of
interest income.
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For the period ended 31 December 2005, the Group
recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
approximately RMB5,644,000, representing a decrease
of 47.2% as compared to that of approximately
RMB10,683,000 for last year. Basic earnings per share
of RMB1.57 cents, compared with RMB2.97 cents per
share in previous year. Profitability was adversely
affected by self-product commercialization.

Liquidity, financial resources

During the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group
financed its operations mainly with its operating
revenue, internal resources and net proceeds from
placement on 2003. As at 31 December 2005, the
Group’s current assets amounted to about
RMB77,586,000 of which approximately RMB9,161,000
was cash and bank deposits. The Group had
approximately RMB3,000,000 outstanding bank
overdrafts pledged by held-to-maturity investment of
RMB28,275,000 (31 December 2004: Nil) and has no
borrowings stated at fixed interest rates (31 December
2004: Nil).

The debt ratio (defined as total liabilities over total
assets) of the Group as at 31 December 2005 was
approximately 10.5% (31 December 2004:
approximately 5.7%). The financial leverage index for
both year 2005 and 2004 was over 1, which indicated
a sound financial position of the Group.

Capital Structure

There has not been any change to the capital structure

of the Company since that date.
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Prospects of New Products and Markets

The Group continued its long-term business transition
plan in expanding its capacities in clinical research
services, manufacturing, marketing and sales and
made tremendous progress toward further establishing
itself as one of the Asia’s leading CPO (contract
pharmaceutical Organization) from a pharmaceutical
technology company. The year of 2005 is an
international expanding year for the Group; we have
signed a number of contracts with leading
pharmaceutical company in US for ANDA. The Group
also entered into strategic alliances with 7 new contract
manufactory organizations and transferred 6 products
to more appropriate manufactory site successfully. The
Group always strengthened its five core business units,
VP-Technology Transfer, VP-PDS (Pharmaceutical
Development Service), VP-CRS (Clinical Research
Service), VP-API (Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient)
and VP-Mart (Venturepharm-Mart).

In 2005, VP-Mart has built more than 12 sales territory
forces, and teamed up with more than 15 sales agents
to help launch more than 8 products for leading
pharmaceutical companies in China. A number of new
products are scheduled to be launched in the
consumer market in 2006 and the sales revenue is
expected to grow in line with the business plan. The
trends of pharmaceutical outsourcing in the world also
create opportunities for the Group.

Significant Investment

The Company invested its surplus fund through its
principal bank in investment grade target convertible
bonds which was RMB28,275,000. In addition to that,
the Group had invested into a long-term investment of
RMB9,396,000 for a production plant and own 19% of

the equity interest of it.
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Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Affiliated Companies

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of

subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year.

Comments on Segmental Information

No geographical segment analysis is presented as all
assets and operations of the Group for the periods are
located in the PRC. No business segment analysis is
presented as all operations of the Group for the periods
are related to pharmaceutical research and
development, registration, application and testing.

Employees

The total number of employees in the Group was 281
as at 31 December 2005 (2004: 205). The Group’s
remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees. In addition to
salaries and bonuses, employee benefits included
medical and pension contributions and share options
schemes.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2005, the Group pledged its held-
to-maturity investment of RMB28,275,000 as security
for the general banking overdraft granted to the Group.
(2004: RMB26,364,000).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

Other than those disclosed in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 June 2003, the Group does not
have any other plan for material investments or capital
assets for the coming year.
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had operating
lease commitments in respect of rented office premises
of approximately RMB16,141,000 (2004:
RMB12,886,000). Apart from that, as at 31 December
2005 and 2004, the Group had no other significant
capital commitment.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the period under review, the Group’s
transactions were substantially denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and about 12% of the cash and
bank deposits were in either Pound Sterling or United
States (“US”) dollars. As the exchange rate of RMB
and US Dollars to HK Dollars is fairly stable, the
Directors are of the view that the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange risk is limited and hence,
the Group closely monitors its foreign currency
exposure from time to time and will engage appropriate
hedging activities when needs arise.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2005, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities (2004: Nil).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

General

The Group is principally engaged in the R&D of
pharmaceutical products in common therapeutic areas.
The Group initiated a long-term 5 year business
transition Plan from 2003 and steer Venturepharm, from
a domestic leading provider of new drug licenses
becoming a global leading full service company from
integrated drug development, manufacturing to
products commercialization services and
pharmaceutical industry. The new full-integrated
service business model will allow company to enjoy
service profits not only from research but also contract
manufactory and contract commercialization.

The year 2005 has been a difficult year due to the
gloomy business environment and competition. The
market inevitably affected by the Government policy
on pharmaceutical industry. To remain competitive, the
Group tried to find other value-added services for its

five core businesses and focus on the global market.

VP-Mart (Venturepharm-Mart)

The Group continued to invest in building up its
marketing capacity and sales network, and launched,
under Venturepharm (& %) brand name, into domestic
markets. During the reported period, the turnover of
VP-Mart obtained obvious growth of approximately
28.1% from RMB1,032,000 in 2004 to approximately
RMB 1,322,000 in 2005.
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VP-Mart established 7 sales Representatives in Qindao,
Zejiang, Tianjin, Jinan, Anhui, Henan and Hainan, 1
subsidiary in Shanghai, and has agents in above 20
areas, such as in Sichuang, Guangdong, Fujian,
Zejiang, Guangxi, Jiangxi and Shanxi etc. VP-Mart
already launched more than 8 products for leading
pharmaceutical companies in China during 2005.
Target customers are hospitals and medical institutions,
as well as retail drug stores. There are 330,000 medical
institutions, 70,000 hospitals, and 120,000 drug stores
in China, which translates into huge market potential.
The management believes the sales generated from
this area will become the major contribution to the
future success of the Group.

VP-PDS (Pharmaceutical Development Service)

Research-oriented global pharmaceutical companies,
have under gone significant changes in the past few
years. Many global pharmaceutical companies are
relying in the services of contract product development
to help them meet growing demand more quickly. As
a result, certain competences, such as dosage form
development are increasingly being outsourced to

third-party service providers such as Venturepharm.

In year 2005, the Group entered into 45 contracts with
26 pharmaceutical companies, which was 16 contracts
more than those entered in year 2004. The total
contract value reached RMB25,980,000 and revenues
obtained from PDS was RMB13,434,000. The Group
established relationship with 837 companies on PDS
operations and 141 companies paid us a visit and
showed much interest in our PDS business.
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It is our extraordinary experience and the full range of
expertise in R&D that distinct Venturepharm from the
competitors. We can offer clients with various choices
from compound selection to patient kit assembly and
design, helping clients in every step of the way. With
the combined resources of Venturepharm, we can
provide single or integrated solutions with capabilities
for virtually most of dosage forms. We also possess
advanced proprietary delivery technologies and the
expertise that can provide solutions to most complex

development problems.

VP-CRS (Clinical Research Service)

CRS services are playing an increasingly vital role, as
it allows pharmaceutical companies to concentrate on
other parts of pharmaceutical development. There are
31 clinical development contracts signed with total
contract value increased from RMB16,150,000 in 2004
to approximately RMB30,170,000 in this year, which
representing 87% increase. The increase was due to
the successful of the Group’s strategy to expand into
this market. At the end of 2005, the Group has
contracted with 56 clients and contacted over 700
clients, involving both domestic and multinational
companies. The Group is focused on growing the
business internally, by expanding the level of business
from existing clients, attracting new clients. The Group
enjoyed a substantial increase of 162.5% in revenue
form CRS, which was RMB14,035,000 in year 2005.
Although CRS market is becoming more competitive
and sophisticated and growing rapidly, the leading
position, efficiency and high quality services will bring
more benefit to the Group.
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VP-API (Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient)

The core competency of VP-API’s focuses on its strong
R&D capacity, driven by over two hundred scientific
elites in chemistry from all over the world. According
to the market and customers requirements, the Group
has developed production of 16 APIs and entered into
70 contracts with 52 clients including 15 overseas
clients during the year. The management team had
participated a number of international exhibitions in
Spain, Dalian and Shanghai during the period in
promoting the API products, building brand, collecting
the commercial information, and digging out potential
clients. The Group also entered into a consigning
contract with an APl companies in Korea. As a relatively
new business, it has generated RMB1,349,000 of
revenue for the Group. During the year, three products
in VP-Hanjiang passed the GMP attestation
successfully; there are AlendronateSodium,
Racecadotril and LANSOPRAZOLE respectively. This
is a new start of VP-Hanjiang and at the same time it
can create extra profit for APl services for our
company. The Group will seek to expand the market
globally and reduce cost to attract the clients in
Southeast Asia. We are ambitiously building our
product portfolio to meet the needs of our clients in
generic drugs or patent-challenged formula in
regulated markets, or the needs of the generic players

in today’s emerging markets.
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VP-Technology Transfer

During the reporting period, the Group has signed
technology transfer contracts for 45 drug products with
a total contract value of approximately RMB25,981,000.
Turnover from technology transfer was amounted to
RMB11,666,000 in 2005, a drop of 8% compared with
last year. Although this business can create high profit
margin for the Group, while the development space
for this market is limited. The Group has kept those
highly skilled new drugs with potential market in the
Group for commercialization so as to get long-term

profit return.

Research & Development

The Group’s portfolio covers all major and high growth
therapeutic areas such as diabetes, CNS (5 14 18 £ &
#t), cardiovascular disease, dermatosis, cancer, AIDS
and allergy.

The Group’s R&D strength still remained the leading
position in the industry. The Group initiated 71 new
projects from beginning of the year 2005 and till now,
the Group has 118 products under development.
During the period, the Group has 59 new products
were submitted to the State Food and Drug
Administration (“SFDA”) for Clinical Study Permits
(“CSP’s”). By the end of year 2005, the SFDA granted
49 new Clinical Study Permits and 28 new
Manufacturing Permits to the Group. The total number
of CSP’s accumulated by the Group climbed to 227
and the total number of Manufacturing Permits
accumulated by the Group climbed to 72.
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The following graph sets out the total numbers of
clinical permits and manufacturing permits obtained

by the Group during the past years:

Clinical Study Permit (Unit)
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Patents

The Group always places great emphasis on the
protection of intellectual property rights. For the past
twelve months, 20 new patent applications were
submitted to the State Intellectual Property Office
(“SIPO”), making a total of 68 patents applications as
at 31 December 2005 by the Group since the start of
its operation.
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International collaboration

The Group also focuses on the establishment of
cooperative relationship with overseas practitioners and
dedicated to delivering value-added services to the
world’s pharmaceutical industry. During the period
under review, several service agreements were signed
with foreign companies pertaining to drug registration
services, technology transfer. In April 2005, President
of Alpharma HPG visited the Group’s Beijing office.
This visit helps promote and enhance R&D outsourcing
service, import registration service, clinical research
service and APl development cooperation between
Alpharma. On 24 August, the CEO and directors of
Estechpharma Co., Ltd., located in Korea, visited
Venturepharm Beijing office for the second time, to
discuss the collaboration mode in contract R&D,
contract manufacturing on specific items. The 5th
Generic drug Pharmaceutical Corporation in Canada
visited Venturepharm on 22 December discussing
cooperation with us in China, especially on API and
CRO area. Totally, there were 31 overseas clients paid
a visit to us in year 2005, these indicate that the Group
has attracted attention of overseas potential partners
and enjoyed a reputable image.

During the period the CEO of the Company and the
Chief Officer of international commercial department
made several business trip overseas to meet with
several investors and industry clients to promote
Venturepharm’s vision and development strategy, and
also established status that Venturepharm was one of

the leading R&D companies in China.
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Brand recognition

To build up a global brand name in order to compete
in the worldwide pharmaceuical market, the Group
continued to promote its image by all kinds of ways.

Venturepharm was awarded the Entrepreneurship &
Innovation Awards by British Chamber of Commerce
in China on 20 January. Meanwhile, on 15 March,
company’s Chairman Mr. William Xia GUO was invited
to attend the awarding ceremony at London Stock
Exchange and to visit the University of Cambridge to
exchange business insights with other managers from
top corporations worldwide.

The company’s Chairman Mr. William Xia GUO was
elected as one of the National Labor Model by State
Department of China. On 30 April, Chairman Hu Jin
Tao, Prime Minister Wen Jia Bao and other chiefs of
the state meet with Mr. Guo and other labor models in
the awarding ceremony. This heart-stirring news
represents Venturepharm was admitted by our nation
and also will enhance our company’s image.

The company's Chairman Mr. William Xia GUO was
elected as one of the outstanding overseas
entrepreneurs and was invited to attend the awarding
ceremony of “Beijing Outstanding Overseas
Entrepreneur” in Beijing on 23 May. Chiefs of the state
addressed in this ceremony and highly praised Mr.
GUO and other overseas entrepreneurs' contribution
to Beijing.

On 10 September, in the Great Hall of the People, the
company’s Chairman Mr. William Xia GUO was praised,
as one of the “Top Ten Outstanding Manager in China”,
by the Forth China Economic Development Forum, for
his distinguished contribution to China economic
development.

m A & E
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On 29 September before the “National Day”, the
company’s Chairman Mr. William Xia GUO attended
the First Ceremony of “Distinguished Innovation
Awarding” in the Great Hall of the People, sponsored
by Overseas Chinese Affairs Office of the State Council
of the P.R.China. In the ceremony, he was interviewed
by the national leaders. The awarding is set up by
Overseas Chinese Affairs Office of the State Council
of the P.R.China, to honor the overseas Chinese
professionals, who have made significant contribution,
since the open policy to China science and technology
development, as well as economy development.

Chairman Mr. William Xia GUO was elected into
“Chinese Entrepreneur of Year 2005” by Chinese
Entrepreneur magazine because he turned a new page
for the extensive export of drugs. There are totally 33
well-known enterprisers in “Chinese Entrepreneur of
Year 2005”.

RIBEIFMAAZtThBE ARBEFEHE
EEHETHEESREREARAEE
BINBEREGREAZRALIALAR
BB EN ZEREMT UYXETER
BEANBRNER ZRARTEBEBERG
MRREHENEFRBRAR KILEINER
BEEATRTHMRESNEELERR
EHMEXRERMER-

ERBEELE AT REHBERAREL
NEK T 2RBAN Al MEEEE
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES TO ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

XEGCEEREREGERILE

Business objectives for the period from

1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005

as stated in the Prospectus of the

Company dated 30 June 2003

BUOARNBDBRAR-—_SE=FNA=THHEZ

ERERFBHR-_ZSZTHEF—HA—H
—EZERET-A=t+T-—BHLZEKBE

Drug product pipeline expansion
FRERRE

1. To achieve total number of 400 accumulated drug
projects to be carried out to the following stages of
development:

HER BT 57 %P R 2 Bon TR B 48 2UE 4001 :

—  Pre-Clinical and pending Clinical Study Permits
(173).
B PR BT 95 S A B BR R T SR AT RI RB (173) ©

- Pending New Drug Certificates/Drug
Manufacturing Permits or Approvals for
Standardized Drugs (106).

FHNEIE BEREETASIEEEMYRX
(106)°

—  New Drug Certificates/Drug Manufacturing Permits
or Approvals for Standardized Drugs obtained
(121).

ERENERE BREEFTENEEERIX
(121)e°

Actual Business Progress
BEREBER

During the reporting period, 49 new Clinical
Study Permits were obtained. As at 31
December 2005, accumulatively 227 Clinical
Study Permits were obtained.

PR & B AN & B B BS 495K ¥ e IR T 58 & 7l
B BHE_TTERAF T _RA=+t—H A£EE
BZBRARM A& REABAB227FR

During the reporting period, 28 new
Manufacturing Permits were obtained. As at
31 December 2005, accumulatively 72
Manufacturing Study Permits were obtained.
RBEHR AEE IS 28RFTEEAIE
BE _TTRF T _A=1t—H XxEEERFZ
AEFABERBEBRT2R
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Business objectives for the period from

1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005

as stated in the Prospectus of the

Company dated 30 June 2003
BUOARNBDBRAR-—_SE=FNA=THHEZ
ERERFBHR-_ZSZTHEF—HA—H
EEZEZRF+ A=+ HLEZEKEE

2. Start 30 new projects for in-house pre-clinical studies.
Therapeutic indications for these drug projects are
expected to include those principal therapeutic areas
identified in earlier period.

FIR30EN ER AN ARERA AR - ZEERMERZ
R EEEREERRPHRMBEZ X ERREE-

3. Add 10 R&D professionals to R&D team.
IEEE10B F EE A A BB E -

4. File 4 product technology patent applications for
registering proprietary technologies and processes with
the State Intellectual Property Office.
ABERABRERERDIRRABEARMR TE 2 ERRF-

Commercialization of drug projects and marketing
EREERELCRTSZER

1.  Continue to recruit and train additional marketing and
sales professionals, and set up sales support offices
in the PRC.
BEBERBIRINEXTSHEEREEAR LESR
RTHEXENFER -

Actual Business Progress
BEREBER

The Group initiated 71 new projects in the
reporting period.
RBEHE AEBRMA7IEHRES -

So far there are 49 R&D professionals added.
E5 DEBAOBHEELS -

The Group had submitted 68 patent
applications since its inception to 31
December 2005.
AEBAKIE_ZETRFE+_A=+—HI
HIER68M EHERGE -

The Group has recruited 55 marketing
professionals focusing on different regions of
the market.
AEBEHBESREXNEHEAR SRIAEE
EhE e
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES TO ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

XEGCEEREREGERILE

Business objectives for the period from

1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005

as stated in the Prospectus of the

Company dated 30 June 2003
BUOARNBDBRAR-—_SE=FNA=THHEZ
ERERFBHR-_ZSZTHEF—HA—H
EEZEZRF+ A=+ HLEZEKEE

2. Continue to engage in Technology Transfer and the
provision of Pharmaceutical Development Services and
Clinical Research Services.

B TR R R AR M B o PR B AR S B R IR A SR AR 7

3. Continue to market the drug products of the Group.
EEHBEASEER-

Manufacturing
8l

Commence preparation for expansion of the Group’s GMP
compliant manufacture facilities.
EFEH BERAEEZGMPE R EER M

Actual Business Progress
BEREBER

The Group always focus on its core business
of Technology Transfer, PDS and CRS, on the
basis of these to expand its business to
manufacturing and sales so as to create more
profit.

AEE-—BERNERMER EnBAERBER
BRAMARB 2 ZOER THRNHBERAEKE
38 N 85 & - LALE B A B RO -

VP-Mart already launched more than 8
products for leading pharmaceutical
companies in China during 2005.

R-ZZRF B2mSERPEBELERAA

HHBBsHAEM-

During the year, the product lines of capsule,
troche, granule and powder have passed the
GMP attestation successfully. The Group is
now focusing on establishing GMP compliant
manufacture facilities for other form of
prepared drugs.
FA-BE-RA BB S EEREIKNE
BGMPRE - NE B IR &£ F RCGMPE AR BL&
b PABLE E M B B 2 B B
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE ISSUING OF THE NEW SHARES

The Company was listed on the GEM on 10 July 2003 by
placing 90,000,000 shares. The net proceeds after
deduction of related expenses amounted to approximately
HK$28 million.

BROTHRAEREAR

AN A 735 B E 90,000,000 N —ZEBEE =
FHA+HERIERLET -RIMNBERIFRE 1
FT 15 FX I8 /F 58 49 & 28,000,000/ 7T °

For the period from the listing
date to 31 December 2005
FtTEHEE—_ZSZTRF
TZA=+—HLHHE

Actual
amount used Per Prospectus
ERCERASE RERERRL

HK$'000 HK$’000
T T
For R&D activities (note 1) AR (MisE1) 7,007 7,500
For marketing activities and FB A T 3% HE B &
brand building (note 2) S kg (MYsE2) 3,149 10,000
For GMP plant establishment FR R B S 7F & GMP
T 2 g BB 8,426 7,000
For overseas market expansion (note 3) RAREE/IINTS
(P 5E3) 2,401 2,500
General working capital —REEES 1,000 1,000
Total &5t 21,983 28,000
Notes: Bt 2E -

1.

Lower expenditure incurred as at end of 31 December 2005
was a result of management being more cautious in screening
suitable partners for the projects and in assessing the market
development of respective therapeutic areas. Project
spending will increase as planned once suitable partners
are identified and appropriate market condition established.

During the period, the marketing activities and brand building
activities were focused in PRC and thus less cost was
incurred. Such expenses in this area will increase when more
overseas activities are incurred in coming periods.

Overseas expansion activities will be activated in coming
periods.

The balance of the proceeds raised will continue to be
used in the projects disclosed in the Company’s Prospectus
and is currently deposited in banks. The Directors consider
that the net proceeds will be sufficient for the requirement
of future business objectives as stated in the Company’s
Prospectus.

1. BRNEEEERMEGRER ZEEBERIEE
ERS SRR ER N L S Ly
S t-ARGREL THBRE-RDEEEE
4T R AL 2R 4B IR 08 B B A6 R B
210

2. BR mBHERS MR MEEEENET R
HAEEZRARK - B ERBMETEZ B
B Uk 75 2 B2 8 A PrIE a0 e

3. EFEBIMHZABERERAERRF-
ERZMEREARBREFTHERT HESER

NRAR 2 RRERAREER - EERANE
SROBH A R DA B 2R A R 2 AR AR AR
RET B BB
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Xia GUOQO, is the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer, Managing Director and Joint Chief Technology
Officer of the Group. Mr. Guo is responsible for strategic
planning and development, overall management and R&D
activities of the Group. Mr. Guo obtained with a Master
degree in science from University of Toronto in March 1997.
Mr. Guo has also completed various approved courses for
the degree of Master of Business Administration in the
Heriot-Watt University. Before establishing the Group in
December 1998, Mr. Guo had worked for two
pharmaceutical companies in Canada, namely Ortho-McNeil
Inc. and Novopharm Limited, both are pharmaceutical
companies in Canada as research scientist and process
development manager, respectively. Mr. Guo has over 10
years experience in research, pharmaceutical development
and management in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Guo
is a member of the American Association of Pharmaceutical
Scientists and the National Pharmaceutical Sciences Group
Inc.

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG, is an executive Director. Dr.
Song is responsible for Clinical Research (R&D) and also
the head of the Human Resources Management Department
of the Group. Dr. Song graduated from China Concord
Medical University with a Doctorate degree in clinical
medicine in July 1995. She is also a Registered Pharmacist
in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group in February 2000,
Ms. Song had served as general manager of Beijing Tiancifu
Biopharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

HITES

HEEE RNEEXF BFENTE ESHALE
REEEERME S EEBRREE ZREBR
EIRBE BREERMBEEL -BEER—N
NEtFE=ZANRZMEABEEE LS JIE
Heriot-Watt University5e X T i & 1218 80 ~
ZERARE-R—ANANF+ZARIAEAEE
Z Bl R B R e K& &N A (Ortho-
McNeil Inc. % Novopharm Limited) % Bl #& (£ &
RRBRETFHARCE PN RBETE Y
g BLEERT 2L I 8 5 T R B B K B o 30
A& TR E 5B 2R E Kk National

=

Pharmaceutical Sciences Group Inc. 2 & 8 °

REBEL ATEE-RELEAELAKRE 2R
RIATE (3 RIS A RAHERERLEE-
RAELTEXNPEBMBRNARE - R—-—NNAF
+ P REIR b R B BE 1S £ 22 - IR IR A B G B
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Tao, is nominated as a non-executive Director
by C Tech Fund. Mr. Feng obtained a Master degree in
Science from the Department of Statistics and Applied
Probability from the University of Alberta in June 1992. Mr.
Feng has been serving as the Vice President Officer of the
The Foundation of Science and Technology for Development
of the State Planning Committee, State Economic and Trade
Commission of the PRC and China Science Academy since
September 1999. He was appointed as non-executive
Director in August 2002.

Mr. WU Xin, is a non-executive Director nominated by C
Tech Fund. Mr. Wu is a vice-president of NewMargin. Mr.
Wu obtained his Master of Science degree from Stanford
University in Engineering-Economic Systems in 1994 and a
Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from
University of lllinois in May 1993. Prior to joining NewMargin,
Mr. Wu worked in Chase Capital Partners, an investment
firm, and at Robertson Stephens & Company, an investment
firm based in San Francisco. He was appointed as non-
executive Director in August 2002.

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG, is a non-executive director. Dr.
Zhang is the former chief executive officer of Chipscreen
Biosciences Ltd., a leading Chinese biotech company
specialized in innovated cancer, diabetes, and osteoporosis
drug discovery. Dr. Zhang had worked with KPMG LLP
and Credit Suisse First Boston. Dr. Zhang holds an M. D
from Tianjin Medical University, Ph. D from University of
Pennsylvania, and an MBA from the University of Chicago,
USA.

FBTES

BB L EC Tech Fundi2 2 HEJEHTTE
F B AN — LN ZF /X HTE University of
Albertagist R fE A R B RS ES2E T 2470
BEEB—NNANFNAR—EHEBERGZ
BEREEZRFEBERBMZEELCERES
ZECREA-FER=_ZSZE_F)\AEZREAHE
MITE S

SRE L EC Tech Fundiz B A EAITE S -
R & BNewMarginZ BlAEE - R — L HF
ELEREABESIREERRESE LS
ER—NANA=FhAEFRMNEFRENFE
T2 &4 B47 - 54 1 BB NewMargingl » & /& &
% (T B — 4% & A A]Chase Capital Partners &
= ™ 2 1% & A & Robertson Stephens &
Company * FR_ZZFZ_FN\ABZERIENTT
Bxo

RMBL FATEF - RELLERIIMEE
WRBERE ZRRAR—RPEBARAENE
BRm BEREEFNAMBEIHEMBERF K
ZRBNRKPMGAEN AR It EEE —RLE
MORERTH - BB AREBEBSHLB LM
XEEREETASEESHELEM K2 MNF
AREFERI/EREL -
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Ming Yu, is an independent non-executive Director
and is the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Wu is a
member of the education committee of the China (Hainan)
Reform Development Research Institute, a member of
Standing Committee of China Association of Science and
Technology; President of Chinese Society of Technology
Economics; Honorary President of China Society of Science
and Science Technology Policy Research and Vice-
President of China Society of Land Economics Research.
Mr. Wu has held the post of Vice Minister of the
Development Research Center of the State Council, Vice
Minister of the State Science and Technology Commission;
President of China Technology Economic Research Institute;
Vice President of China Society of Science and Science
Technology Policy; Economist of Economy Research
Institute of the State Council and President of Asia-Pacific
Research Institute. He was appointed as independent non-
executive Director in August 2002.

Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALQS, is an independent non-
executive Director. He holds an MBA from the Columbia
University in May 1985. Mr. Contomichalos had worked for
Bristol-Myers Squibb (BMS). His first position in China was
to start up the consumer over-the-counter business of
Bristol-Myers Squibb in 1994. He became Chairman and
President of Bristol-Myers Squibb China from 1997 to 2000.
Prior to working in China, Mr. Contomichalos held various
key consumer marketing and business development
positions with Bristol-Myers Squibb in the USA and Canada
and has about 18 years of experience in this field. He was
appointed as independent non-executive Director in August
2002.

Mr. WANG Hong Bo, is an independent non-executive
director. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Wang graduated from Nan Kai
University with a master degree. Mr. Wang is presently a
company secretary of TCL Group Limited. Mr. Wang has
over 10 years of experience in auditing. He was appointed
as independent non-executive Director in September 2004.

BYFHTES
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group’s senior management comprises the following
employees:

Dr. Tom Tuo Jin, is the Joint Chief Technology Officer. Dr.
Jin holds M. D from University of Toronto and Ph. D from
Hokkaida University. Dr. Jin engaged in education and
pharmaceutical R&D in Japan, USA Novartis and Canada
for years. Dr. Jin was a researcher with Aventis-Pasteur
(USA), Supervisor of Formulation Division with BioDelivery
Science (USA), as well as Associate Professor with Long
Island University. Dr. Jin is the dean of Sinican Institute.
Dr. Jin published 25 articles in periodical and applied for
10 patents. Dr. Jin is a member of American Association of
Pharmaceutical Scientists.

Dr. CHEN Mingwei,
Group. Dr. Chen has obtained MBA from Purdue University

is the Director of Marketing of the

in 2003 and Ph. D. in Food Science and Technology from
University of Georgia in 1997. He has more than 10 years
of variety working experiences in biotech both industry and
academic environment. He worked with several well known
companies and Universities in USA. Before joining
Venturepharm, he worked for Beijing MYS S&T Development
LLC as Chief Technical Consultant Officer for over 2 years.
The unique background makes him a scientist/manager type
of person, who is strong on initiating and managing projects
in the world market, leading professional team to develop
innovated products, leading marketing and sales teams to
launch the products/services worldwide.

Mr. Michael Kun LIU,
Entity Division, (Pharmaceutical Development, R&D). Mr

is the head of the Medicinal Drug

Liu obtained a Master degree in Pharmaceutical Science
from Osaka University in Japan in March 1998. He worked
for Number 6 Northeastern Pharmaceutical Factory between
1991 and 1994 in the area of new product development
and was involved in several new product programs. Mr.
Kun joined the Group in June 2002 and has 13 years of
experience in the field of pharmaceutical industry.

EREEE

AEBzEREEEANTRE

‘I]]]IJ
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Mr. Tim Ting GUO, is the Chief Financial Officer and the
head of the Accounting & Finance department of the Group.
Mr. Guo holds a Bachelor degree from Financial and
Economics University of Nanjing. He has about 10 years
financial

working experience in accounting and

management. Mr. Guo worked for a number of
pharmaceutical companies as head of financial department.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the Chief Financial Officer
about 2 years and Vice-president about 1 year for one of
Beijing Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited. Mr. Guo joined

the Group in 9 May 2005.

BELEE AEEMKEERSARMBHRE
B-BEERARARMERBEELTEU KNG
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The directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries and
associate are set out in notes 7 and 8, respectively, to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business sectors is set out in note 20 to the financial
statement.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2005 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 62 of the annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2005.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Company during the year are set out in note 5 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 135.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Managing Director:
William Xia GUO
Executive Directors:

Maria Xuemei SONG
David Xuesong GAO (resigned on 27 March 2006)
Non-Executive Directors:

FENG Tao

WU Xin

Philip Pak Yiu YUEN
Nathan Xin ZHANG

(resigned on 18 March 2005)
(appointed on 2 February 2005)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

WU Ming Yu
Paul CONTOMICHALOS
WANG Hong Bo

Apart from Nathan Xin ZHANG and WANG Hong Bo, which
do not have a service contract, each of the executive
directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for three years from 10 July 2003 (the “Listing
Date”). Each of the executive directors and non-executive
directors was appointed as director of the Company
respectively subject to termination in certain circumstances
as stipulated in the relevant service contracts, if applicable.

FEUBME

AEERBERAEYRFEZLXEREERR

BEHMESHNE1358

=2

FARBEAREBHEARBZEEESTR:

EEgKE:

BE

HITESE:

Rl

BT

(R=FEAF= A=+ LABE)
ERTEE:
B

KRR
Br it i (R=ZZEZTRF=A+N\BEMT)

3R iR (R—ZEZERFE-_A-_HEZF)
BIAHTES:

= BH Fn

Paul CONTOMICHALOS

F 4L

BRORMR EALRY |ATSLRIE A KN BMITE
FERARANIBE_ZZE=FtRA+RH([L
MEH]) B RRA=FZRESN-SATES
RFATEZRZERARFAEEHERRNE
BRARBEX (WER) ATRAZETERT TR
w1k



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2005

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

In accordance with Articles 95 and 112 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, WU Xin, Nathan Xin ZHANG and
WANG Hong Bo retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

Save as disclosed above, no directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2005, the interests and short positions
of the directors, chief executives of the Group and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”), which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken
under such provision of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.41 to 5.49 of the GEM
Listing Rules were as follows:

BRBEARBZAREBERMANFEISR 11215
R RMREFAFREEL S ERBRET-

B EXCRBEEIN SR EERRBE NS EEE
E2EF BEITLENAEER -FATED
E CEAEMERIN) MTETARLEZRES
#Je

EERNEHcER

NR_EERF+_A=+—H AEEZESE"
FETBRABERBECHBEATRARAIRAE
HEEE (EXRBSRAEGRN ([FHRAE
B ) EXVER) 2Bt Bk M ESF - %
B)ERBESMHAEEAIEXVEETRESS
HHeA A RBZMzE=RAR (BEES
BIEESRBAEGOIZE G E ER B
BERIOKE) H(D)RIEZF KBRS
352{f B AZIEFT A B R Mz S AR
()ﬁﬁ@%ﬂ%ﬁtmﬁ%”amiamh%

Mz EmERBWET:
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company REXTROREBRBZHR
(1) The Company (1) A7
Number of

shares in which
Number of shares interested under

in which interested  physically settled Approximate
(other than under  equity derivatives percentage
Type of equity derivatives) REEWLEE  Total number of interest
Name Interest Capacity BEEGZRHHA BAfTETA of shares RafH
i3] EzER 5% (RAFTETERS) HEESZZRAHA I 47 48 & ARl
(Note 3)
(K zE3)
William Xia GUO Personal Beneficial owner 9,110,377 7,560,000 16,670,377 4.63
HE f3A EanEBA
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 149,432,583 - 149,432,583 41.51
EiE] N corporation (Note 1)
REGEEER (F:1)
William Xia GUO Corporate  Interest of a controlled 15,966,073 - 15,966,073 4.44
$E NG corporation (Note 2)
BXEHEE#ER (WH2)
Note 1: The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings M&E1: 242 )% B Venturepharm Holdings
Inc. is 47.63% directly held by Mr. Guo Xia and Inc.BEP B A B 45 B 47.63% M # -
44.94% held by Mr. Guo Xia through Winsland LA K2 fh 2B B 5t 4 35 @ Winsland Agents
Agents Limited, his wholly and beneficially owned Limited (PAREBRZFSEMA A
company incorporated in British Virgin Islands. HEEZEEREES) FH44.94%K
o
Note 2: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets MgsE2: = = %l % B Bright Excel Assets
Limited, is 100% beneficially owned by Limited® #B A% # & Venturepharm

Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Holdings Inc. Bz # A ©
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Note 3:

EHRE

Various interests of the directors and chief
executives pursuant to physically settled equity
derivatives are through share options granted under
the Pre-IPO share option scheme. Details of which
are set forth as follows:

Number of shares

in which interested

under physically settled
equity derivatives as at

20 June 2003 and

31 December 2005
R=—ZTZT=FXA=+H
R=—Z2ZRF+=-A=+—H

Name REBYEERATETIR
A EEEZZBRMHEE
William Xia GUO 7,200,000
EI9=) 7,200,000
William Xia GUO 360,000
PE 360,000

Options granted to Mr. William Xia GUO contain a
vesting schedule, pursuant to which may be
exercise up to 30% of the underlying shares after
31 December 2003, up to another 30% of the
underlying shares after 31 December 2004 and the
remaining balance after 31 December 2005. These
options will expire ten years after the date of grant.
Mr. GUO has also undertaken to the Stock
Exchange that he will not exercise his options
granted under the Pre-IPO share option scheme
within the first 12 months from the listing date.

M3 BEEREIEBTBRAERENEERSE
METABR T2 ZAREREBRE

BRAFEK?

BB AR Bl 2 B8

R A BRI T :

Date of Grant
®EBH

20 June 2003
—EE=_FA_-+H

02 March 2005
—EERF=A-H

Exercise Price

THEE

HK$0.32
0.32%8 T

HK$0.52
0.52% 7T

DB L EREE 2 BRED N 5B
M- Bl BOR =TT =F+=A=
T—BREITETZREER7H30%2
ERE R_TTNF+=-A=+—H
BITETZRBBER D ER30%.2
B - ER—_EERF+=-_A=+—H
BITERT 2 BRE - BEBREZR
BREBHBETFER-PELETRERM
B X P - B LT B Bt E 121E A
A EASTERBEEXAABEEA
BREGTEIER 2 BRE-

4
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(2) A subsidiary of the Company — Beijing Dezhong —
Venture Pharmaceutical Technology Development
Company Limited

Name Type of interest Capacity

%A EEER 37

William Xia GUO  Corporate Interest of a controlled

HBE NG corporation (Note 1)
Rt EEER (1)

Note 1: The interest is held by Beijing Venturepharm Biotech

Pharmaceutical Technology Company Limited, a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC,
for which 99% of its shareholding is beneficially
held by Mr. William Xia GUO and 1% held by Dr.
Maria Xue-mei SONG.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2005, none
of the directors and chief executive had any interests or
short positions in any securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provision of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) pursuant to the rules 5.41 to 5.49 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

(2) XRBIZHBLA - RERELEYF
g % B R 2 7]

Approximate
percentage of
interest of
shareholding
in joint venture

Capital contribution
on a Sino-foreign
co-operative

joint venture

R—-EH ek REELXKE

RELXCHEAH ZREHNEIL

US$111,000 12.83
111,000% 7T

M1 BERLEREZEMBEMRERA

AR A R AR A RN BEREMAZ
ZEBRRE HOO%REHRIELEE
B5RE B1%UARSHBELRE-

B EXHBEEEN REERFE+_A=1+—
HEERETETBAEBMERARA G SHFEM
HESEE (ER RESF RHBEGKRAEXVE) 2 &
FH HEHEGQBEESRAEKRIEXVHBET
R ZE 85 5 Al g AN A 7] Fe Bt A2 Bt 2 A (] 4 25 20k
B (BRESEREZSRPERIZZEREE
ES G REE 2 ERIAE) H(D)IREZHR
HA S {651 28 3521651 A 5% 1601 iy 3t & 5 it 2 (E ]
xR S(c)BRIRAIZER LR E5.41%
5498 2 ME 2 EMER AR -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as it is known to any directors, chief executives of

the Company, as at 31 December 2005, the interests and

short positions of persons in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
pursuant to Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were required, pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the

SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein were

as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Name

=L

Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 1)
(

Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 2)
(

Bright Excel Assets Limited (Note 2)

C Tech Fund

William Xia GUO (Note 1, 2 &3)
28 (KizE1-2K%3)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Capacity
&4

Beneficial owner
BEEE1) EHERA
BzE2) REHEEE R
Beneficial owner
(Kt 3E2) EREAA

Beneficial owner

ExBAA

Interest of a controlled corporation

Beneficial owner and interest

FERR

BARREZRIBZTRAERM R_TFTH
FT+_R=1T—B U TALHAERAR ZRkH
K BB P B9 R 2 ROR B M AR IR R 55 ) B
BIRBIFEXVEBE 2R F30 #IE L W E - HARE
& 75 I BB 165 26 XV AR 55 336 16 78 51| A\ "% fik Ay it
Bt zam kAR

REARAROREBROZHRE
Approximate
Number percentage
of Shares of interest
R&GEHAE EafBiaEsl
149,432,583 41.51
15,966,073 4.44
15,966,073 4.44
80,736,558 22.43
182,069,033 50.57

of controlled corporations

ERBlAARZEHAB# S

Venturepharm Holdings Inc. is 47.63% directly held by
Mr. Guo Xia and 44.94% held by Mr. Guo Xia through
Winsland Agent Limited, his wholly and beneficially
owned company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited,
is 100%. Beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings
Inc.

Apart from shares held through Venturepharm Holdings
Inc., the interest 16,310,377 shares comprising of
7,200,000 and 360,000 shares underlying the options
granted to him under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and Share Option Scheme respectively are beneficially
owned by Mr. William Xia GUO.

MfzE1: Venturepharm Holdings Inc.% Bl £ 38 & %
EERREA7.63%KE URAHBE LR
#BWinsland Agent Limited (7 2 &8 &g & &f
SaAMKL BB ELEE=EE) FE
44.94% & #E ©

fifzE2: #4174 B Bright Excel Assets Limited&
= §% 4% /B Venturepharm Holdings Inc. B &
%A -

MizE3: BRiEBVenturepharm Holdings Inc. 8 2
B oh-ZBE R EE = %EH 16,310,377 AL
D EhaEREE R AR S RARER
MR B N BB AR AR 5T 813 T 1% 2 B IRE P S I
2 5117,200,0008% % 17 % 360,000/% A% 17
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2005, there
was no other persons who recorded in the register of the
Company as having interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were required, pursuant to section 336 of Part XV
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements,
no other contracts of significance to which the Company
and any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Venturepharm Inc. (“VP Inc.”), a subsidiary of the
Company’s shareholder, engages the Group to research
and develop seven new drugs and provide related
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services. According to the agreements entered into by VP
Inc. and the Group, approximately 20 to 40 per cent. of the
contract sum is payable by VP Inc. within seven days after
the application to The State Food and Drug Administration
of the People’s Republic of China (the “SFDA”) for clinical
study permit is accepted; approximately 30 per cent. within
seven days after obtaining clinical study permit from the
SFDA; approximately 20 to 40 per cent. after completion of
clinical trial with submission of a full report to VP Inc.; and
approximately 10 per cent. within seven days after obtaining
new drug certificate from the SFDA. The total contract value
is RMB6.6 million, which were, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, conducted in the normal course of
business at prices and terms no less than those charged
to and contracted with other third party customers of the
Group. During the year, the Group received RMB357,000
from VP Inc. for these services provided. The Group was
granted a waiver covering the period from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2005 from strict compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules.

BREXFBEBREN RZETRF+_RA=+—
B-R®RARAECMEHE MEEMEMALR
ARABZENHAERNTRHEEREES R
HIBIRDIEXVERE 2R F 30 Al R 2 i s g0R
B AREE 7 M E R % XVER S 3361%5
AZ GRS R Mz ERIORE -

EEREXRGH RS

BRI mAMERWEEI RELGRARFAL
WEE HEFTERRRREEANBARRE
FAIMTRARREERETPERXHAEESR
EARBBRZERELN-

BEXS

NN E) B R 2 MY B A Al Venturepharm Inc. ([VP
Inc.]) ZRASKERTRFAE BN ERIRME
BRI R R i OB AR TS o IR IR VP Inc B AR
E@ETSL 2 Wi VP Inc. B R EA R L FEEH
FEMEREEEER([RMEMREER]) X
BRARARTAZEZHBELARN INFEHE
S FN205E40% + RIS R i 82 BB B 2 R IR #f
TR &%t BARAZF430% : KRR RR AR
WAVP Inc IR R TR ME BT [T4920£40% : I
RESEMEREERCHMEIERELAANL
#A110% - & #4818 AR %6,600,0007T A A &
EERBERCHN IR BEXEBBARIERTE
RENFAEBEME - A RFZEBRREH
RN ZIGRMET M - FAN AREBRIEH 2 ZE
R 75 WER VP Inc. A R #357,0007T © 48 & B E
$Be mEtTBARRFE-_STRAF+=_A=1
—HIEERE BAERKESTAIZER ETARAC
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

1.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the
shareholder on 31 March 2003, the Company adopted
a share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) in order to recognize and reward the
contribution of certain directors, senior management
and advisers, the details of which are set out in the
paragraph head “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix
IV to the Prospectus. As at 20 June 2003, options
comprising a total of 11,520,000 underlying shares
were granted. As at 31 December 2005, the options
outstanding are 11,520,000 and no options granted
pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme had
been exercised, cancelled or lapsed. Particulars of
the outstanding options that had been granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2005 are as follows:

Period during
which the options
remain exercisable

after the date of grant

B

Exercise price

=113

%ﬂ

BERAMERABRESS

RAFBRBERER -_SEE=F=FH=1+—
HBBRzEERZRAMNERETS ([&
a&&a%m BAERTE]) B ERER
ETEE SAEEERERZER F6B
BN ERERHI R (BB AR B — BB
—ET=FANA-+TB RRABREERHSR
& #£11,520,0000% 18 BA AR 19 2 B AR #E - A =
ZERFF+H=+—H" 11,520,000 &
B ARTE BEREBEE X ARERATER
REFTEIRE c BRES MBI Kk
M-R_ZEERF+_A=+—H REE
RAFERAEBRESEE H LB ® KT
ErBEREFBNT:

Number of underlying
shares under the option
as at 20.6.2003

and 31.12.2005
R=-ZZE=F<A=t1H

Name of grantees B AR R A R per shares F=ZEERF+=A=+—H
PN A& A FITREER BRITEE BRESR2HBROHE
William Xia GUO (Note 1&2) 10 years HK$0.32 7,200,000
HE (PE1%2) TF 0.327 T
2 other participants (Note 1&2) 10 years HK$0.32 2,520,000
mEHEm2EE (HF1k2) T4 0.32 7T
1 other participant (Note 3) 10 years HK$0.40 1,800,000
—RHE M2 EE ([HE3) TF 0.40% 7T

11,520,000
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EFE

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

] &

Options granted to each of them contain a vesting
schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to
30% of the underlying shares after 31 December
2003, (subject to Note 2), up to another 30% of the
underlying shares after 31 December 2004 and the
balance after 31 December 2005.

Each of the grantees has undertaken to the Stock
Exchange that they will not exercise their options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme
within the first 12 months from the Listing Date.

Options granted to an advisor contain a vesting
schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to
30% of the underlying shares after 31 December
2002, up to another 30% of the underlying shares
after 31 December 2003 and the balance after 31
December 2004. The respective grantee has
undertaken to the Stock Exchange that he will not
exercise his options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Options Scheme within the first 6 months from
the Listing Date.

BRET:

foaE2:

faES:

1 SRR 2 BRI B R R
W FEAIRSEE=F+=_A=1+—
H %1781 % 5 HE B AR 19 30% 2 B8 AR
B (EMF2ZHART) RZTTWMF
+TZA=+—BRTETZRHEBR
MEBRIO%ERE MR =TT HEF
TZA=t+—B®RIEH T ZERE-

B AE N B MR AR - 1 BT H
REE12EAR REGTSTEBE
ERNGEL G g b Sl
P HE o

BT — BRI 2 B IR N A5 B R
Bl AR =T =_F+=_A=1+—
H %1781 % 5 HE B AR 19 30% 2 B8 AR
BR-ZEE=F+-_A=1+—H%ETT
ERZ R AR EER30% 2 Bk HE
ER—_ZEWNE+—-_A=+—HA%1T
8T 2 AR - B B AR A B [A1HE 32
FraEsE R EmBE R E6EAR &
ST R B IR A R SRR ATE R
TR 2 B
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2. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 20083, the Company

adopted a new share option scheme.

As at 2 March 2005, options comprising a total of
4,042,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2005, the options outstanding are 4,042,000
and no options granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme had been exercised, cancelled or lapsed.
Particulars of the outstanding options which have been
granted under the Share Option Scheme as at 31

December 2005 are as follows:

Period during

which the options
remain exercisable
after the date of grant

Name of grantees R BHRERE
BERAME MAT FIE2HE
William Xia GUO 10 years

HE TF

Other directors 10 years

HESE TF

Other participant 10 years
Hiamk TF

BRESTS

BEARAGRER_ZFZE=ZFRA=-_+=
HZEERBE ANQARA— I3 ERE

st

R-ZZEZERF=A_H BEBEEPREHL
4,042,000k B D 2 IR E- R =TT
AF+=A=+—H"%F4,042,00013 B& i%
T 18 R AT (R - 1 B AR R &I T R R (] BE
PRAEETE FHIKB R RF+
ZA=1+—H BR@AREBERESERLE 2
mARITEEREFBLOT

Number of underlying
shares under the option
at 2.3.2005 and 31.12.2005
R=BEZIF=ZA=HRK

Exercise price —E2ZEE+-H=+—H
per shares BREMSR
BRITEE HERGHE

HK$0.52 360,000
0.52/8 7T
HK$0.52 1,152,000
0.52% 7T
HK$0.52 2,530,000
0.52/8 7T

4,042,000
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3. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 20083, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme.

As at 14 December 2005, options comprising a total
of 1,098,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2005, the options outstanding are 1,298,000
and no options granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme had been exercised, cancelled or lapsed.
Particulars of the outstanding options which have been
granted under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2005 are as follows:

Period during

which the options
remain exercisable
after the date of grant

3. BRESE

BERARBRRR -_TT=FRA=-+=
A2 EBERZER AR ARANERE

gl

R-ZEZRAF+_A+HB ERHFERE
1,098,000 % HE B R 0 < R - = F
TRFE+=-A=+—H" 51,298,000 &
AR HE R ARITE  MEBARBEET EITE T INE
BREETE FHIARB-R_EZRF
+TZA=+—H BEREERETSE D
ZEARITEBREFBEAT:

Number of underlying
shares under the option

at 14.12.2005 and 31.12.2005
R-ZZTIF+-A+tHEAR

R AHE Exercise price —E2ZEE+-H=+—H
Name of grantees BB RED AT per shares BREMSR
PN < T2 BRITEE HERGHE
11 participants 10 years HK$0.45 1,098,000
NE2EE TF 0.45% 7T
1,098,000
COMPETING INTERESTS mEER

As at 31 December 2005, none of the Directors or the
management shareholders of the Company and their
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.

R-ZEZRF+ _A=+—"B ARAFAZEEH
EEERRERESAZHEAL (EXRAE
R T AR ) B ] B AR [ XA R A R AT
EBRRBFNEBTHEA R
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SPONSOR’S INTEREST

As at 31 December 2005, neither the sponsor of the
Company, China Everbright Capital Limited (“China
Everbright”), nor its directors, employees or any of their
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules), had any
interest in any securities of the Company.

Pursuant to the agreement dated 27 May 2004, entered
into between the Company and the Sponsor, China
Everbright received and will receive a fee for acting as the
Company’s sponsor for the period commencing from (and
including) 27 May 2004 and ending on (and including) 31
December 2005 or the date the Agreement is terminated.

BOARD PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES

Since the listing of the Company, the Company has
complied with Board Practices and Procedures as set out
in Rules 5.28 to 5.39 of the GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
SHARES

The Company or any of its subsidiaries didn’t purchase,
sell or redeem any of the Company’s listed shares during
the twelve months ended 31 December 2005.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 20% of the Group’s sales. The
largest customer accounted for approximately 5% of the
sales of the Group.

Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group'’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any interest
in the five largest customers of the Group.

REAEDS

R_FEAF+_A=+t—H ARFREBAF
BAARMEARAR ([FEXK]) HEZ &
BAREFEMBERAL (EERARRLETR
A BMERARARZESTHRBEE AR

READAREFRBAFBEXRNAIZAHRASZ
ZENFEFRRA -t EBRZWHH FERENER -
ZEMFRA-_THER (BRER) BE-ZT
AFE+-A=+t—HB (BRER) XHBIRLE
BLEHEETCAQRZREA LHLKNE
e

EEEgEARER

BARXA LMK —HEETRIFR EHRAE

5.28E539FHI 2 EETERHAREF-

BE HEIBMEAQ2IARS

HE-_ZEERF+_-_A=1+—BIt+=-BEAR"
RARRETMHBARMERE HExED
ERIARQF EHRMD-

TEHEBAREF

FRNAEEAATPHEARBEHEERDN20% -
RAFPHAKREHERN% -

AEBRAAHREREHRRABEEREIONASE
B EEE30%°

JiE]

#

7

REEMA FAEARAERETRARSRZE
EHBBATREMRRBERAKRELAE
FPrhEEEMER-
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng were appointed as the auditors
of the Company in succession to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
who resigned from the office with effect from 23 December
2005. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

William Xia Guo
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC, 27 March 2006

BrRBERE

ARRZARABERAAAR S ELE
BERBREZIG WARBBARLIARE
BERIEZ2F A AD -

B BED

BE S EEMEZERAN R RZEE  AE
BR-_ETAFT-_A-+=HHT2EHH
®= RO & TEDTT - Bl @& 5t B 5 25 P 5 10 FE A

RAFAGRE LEEREBRRERLTAT
% B

RREFE

REIER —EERF=ZA_++tH
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1)

(2)

EEEBRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company applied the principles and fully complied
with the Code Provision as set out in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules (“CG Code”) with certain
deviations save as disclosed in respect of (1) the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer and (2) the
remuneration committee. The following summarizes the
Company’s corporate governance practices and
explains of deviations, if any, from the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Company Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
in compliance with the provisions that are set out in
the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
Directors’ dealings of securities since 29th June, 2005.
Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors
and the Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Company
Code in the period from 1 January 2005 to 31
December 2005.

(1)

(2)

ERERER

AR BK B A ZE AR _E AR BB 8% 1557 8 R
W&EEL? RETESFAMEX ([REE
ABMRSTA) ERREHERRE 2EH
MIfﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁZﬁ@&m = 8
e TXBMAR R 2 EEE AT R EE
REECEEREHRTRZER (WE) -

ESCEHEXRS

K@ﬂa%%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
MEMBTAESETESFRZIND

Al {ERARBIH_TEZTHF A +na
t%%ﬁzﬁ%Zﬁ#ﬁwh%m%%%$
EHERBEH® EFHR BTERZ

__ﬁi )E] E:I:—77££E+ H +_
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(3) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall governance structure of the Company is

(3) Exg

/N

set out below:

Note:

(a)

The Board
BExg

Chairman appointed by the board
FTRHESREEME
2 Executive Directors
MERITES
3 Non-Executive Directors
ZHFEBITESE
3 Independent Non-Executive Directors

—RBUNITES

AR E A

R

Executive Directors Audit Committee

HTES EREEE
e . 3 Independent Non-Executive Director
William Xia GUO - P
SE SERBUERITES
. . WU Ming Yu (Chairman)
MagaXuemel SONG SERE (FE)
=18 Paul CONTOMICHALOS
WANG Hong Bo
F AR

Senior Management

BREERE

Dr. Tom Tuo Jin, Joint Chief Technology Officer

Tom Tuo Jint& = - 5 fE £ 17 48 &5

Dr. CHEN Mingwei, Director of Marketing of the Group
CHEN Mingwei i+ REB RS EE

Mr. Michael Kun LIU, head of Medicinal Drug Entity Division
BREEE BRERBHIITEE

Mr. Tim Ting GUO, Chief Financial Officer

HEFE MGHEE

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company during the (a)
year and up to the date of this report are:

FENG Tao
WU Xin

Philip Pak Yiu YUEN
Nathan Xin ZHANG

(resigned on 18 March 2005)
(appointed on 2 February 2005)

FARBEARE A NAR 2 EEFEH
TEER:

SEE V2
IRy Ies

2R
ritiE2 (R—ZZERFE=H+ /\BEIE)
KM (R=ZZERF-_F-—HAEZT)
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(b) Apart from Nathan Xin ZHANG and Wang Hongbo, which
do not have a service contract, each of the directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company
for three years from 10 July 2003 (the “Listing Date”).
Each of the executive directors and non-executive
directors was appointed as director of the Company
respectively subject to termination in certain
circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service
contracts, if applicable.

(c) Save as disclosed above, no directors have a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company is
collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of the business and affairs of the Group
with the objective of enhancing shareholders value.

The Board of the Company comprises a total of eight
Directors, with two Executive Directors, three Non-
executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. One-third of the Board is
Independent Non-executive Directors and one of them
has appropriate professional qualifications. Reviews
are made regularly of the Board composition to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company. All Independent Non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines.

(b) BMEMREARLJEITZLRB AL FE
FEEARAFZA-_TE=FA+H
(TEm R B AB=F2RBEEL-
BRTESRFATESHEZER/ER
AES HEAAEFERBAH (WER) £&T
HZETHBRT FIAKLILE.

(c) BLEXFEEEIN BEERTLEFMAE
BN —FANMELHEE OXEMERS) M
TEET AR IE 2 RIGE K)o

ARREFE ([EFE]) ARAAEEER
SEEXEBEREB2ER URARREER
SRk

ARPEZTEHARN\BESTER E+TM
ARATES ZBRIIFVTEFTR=2R
BYRTEF =D 2EFEKNERSBE
MIERTTER ET —RAEGEBEXRER
EreEien EAR NERREEZE
EHMB RERERTIEFE UEAR
ARAEBHEZ - 2BBIUFATESTHTA
EHRRNEIABGME B LI5S BERE
BESl G X BB 510
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The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the
approval and monitoring of the Group’s overall
strategies and policies; approval of annual budgets
and business plans; evaluating the performance of the
Group; and oversight of management. One of the
important roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership
to the Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Group. All Directors have been
consulted about any matters proposed for inclusion in
the agenda. With the support of Executive Directors
and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receives adequate and
reliable information in a timely manner.

Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in
advance to give all Directors an opportunity to attend.
Four regular Board meetings at approximately quarterly
intervals have been scheduled for 2005. The Directors
can attend meetings in persons or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

Board papers are circulated not less than seven days
before the Board meetings to enable the Directors to
make informed decisions on matters to be raised at
the Board meetings. The Company Secretary and the
Qualified Accountant shall attend all regular Board
meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters when
necessary. Directors shall have full access to
information on the Group and are able to obtain
independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman in establishing the meeting
agenda, and each Director may request inclusion of
items in the agenda. Minutes of the board meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by Directors.

EEEmIRAE AEAERREEAERE
BREBLRBER HEFERE @XK
2 A AEERR REBEERE-TFH
T-HREZRE RREEFT UERE
FEUAKEZENRTE - EAMEZHA
FEZEHOSHALBEEER BB
TEERARMWEBEZXF TEBNBEER
BEELREZBNENESTESRREL
ZERE WEREHRAEER-

ARRENEBFEHNEETCERELRT
REX NEL2BEFARSLHEE R
—ETRRF BREFTERLHRITHAE
HEZEER - REARRZARMEMETR
MA BRI RGREBEFBASTALE

S

EFENMENEFERRBETHRI LR
AR NEREFEMSNREFTET TR
B2 ZBRERABERE ARAWEREER
SMALEMBEEHEST SR UNTE
ZRMARER ATERI St MM HE
BREER - BEFEAERASEMEER
BUYEREERATEENSELIEXE
R-RAWEBDIFEREEEZRE ME
EXEA2RRFEEHARB -EFEEHEC
BHARMEFE LAHEEERN-
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During the twelve months ended 31 December 2005,
the Board met and held four meetings in March, May,
August and November 2005. The attendance records
of the aforementioned four Board meetings are set out
below:

Executive Directors HITES
William Xia GUO e
Maria Xuemei SONG REHG

HE-_ZZTRAF T -_A=T—HL+T=f
R E2e8R=_FETAF=A AH N\A
&‘f‘ ARTHREEH LN AESE=
M2 HERsEES T

Attendance of individual Directors
at board meeting During the year
ended 31 December 2005
BE-_ZZRAF+-A=1+T—HLFE

David Xuesong GAO =5 ER
(resigned on 27 March 2006) (R=ZZEZTRF
ZAZTEBREMT)
Non-executive FHITES
FENG Tao b
WU Xin R
Nathan Xin ZHANG 5 iR
Independent Non-executive BIFHTES
WU Ming Yu EE

Paul CONTOMICHALOS
WANG Hongbo

Paul CONTOMICHALOS
B

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, and ensures that
all keys and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely and constructive manner.

However, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
has not yet been appointed. Currently, the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business is handled
by the executive directors and senior management,
who take the responsibility to run the Group’s business
and to implement the Group’s strategy so as to achieve
the overall commercial objectives of the Company.

In order to comply with CG Code, the Directors will
discuss the appointment of a chief executive during
the upcoming Board meeting dated 27 March 2006.

(4)

BAREEvEEgaaadER

Attendance No Attendance Rate

IR =

4/4 100%

4/4 100%

3/4 75%

4/4 100%

4/4 100%

4/4 100%

4/4 100%

4/4 100%

4/4 100%
FERITHRAR

EFEeIRFARAEESS REHEBERE

B UEREES LB EER MR
BEENEEEE-

SR AR R AR E EEAITRAAR IR
AAREBZAEERARTESTRER
EREAEBRT REABLEREHBEKR
WITAKERE AERARREEEHER
Re

RETEEEAERTA EEFNEZTE
/‘_\EEH:+‘EE§E%§Z%$ == n‘%zu‘ Eﬁ%
LETHRAEE-
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(7)

EEEBRS

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises the
Chairman of the Board Mr. William Xia GUO, a Non-
executive Director Mr. FENG Tao and an Independent
Non-executive Director Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALQOS.
Mr. William Xia GUO
Remuneration Committee.

is the chairman of the

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and
reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.

In order to comply with CG Code, the Directors will
discuss the appointment of another Independent Non-
executive Directors to replace Mr. Feng Tao in the
Remuneration Committee during the upcoming Board
meeting dated 27 March 2006. Subsequent to the
aforesaid appointment, Independent Non-executive
Directors will comprise majority of the Remuneration

Committee.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, nomination of directors is determined by
the Board with approvals by the shareholders in the
general meeting.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The coming annual general meeting should approve
the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng as
new auditors of the Group and that the Board is and
be hereby authorized to fix auditor’s remuneration. Non-
audit services were not provided by previous auditors
to the Company during the twelve months ended 31
December 2005.

(5)

(6)

(7)

EsMe

B Y EZEehESESIEBELE
FERITESRRELERBIERATES
Paul CONTOMICHALOS?& K20 B S
EhTMEEEE

FMEB e T ERERNEREERS
MEBANERAME 2 NARHE &R
AEFERIEBER Y2EEEETH
BRZARFERBE ROZEATES
EEaREBABZBEMNEES-

REBTEEEARTHRTA EERE_F

NEZA-tLtRBTZEFEEE TWw
ZESZ—RBUFPTESTEREFTLE
MAHFMEE G -FH LA RER BIIF
HTESHBERFMHEZEERE Z2RZH-

REEE

BRERARBZARIEBKERMA EFERA
MEFERE LAEBRRRRRASH
JEe

BBET &

REBRITZRRBEAE LHHERE
BREetmESMmAREEMEZEA &
ERENEREEERBMNS - BE_ZT
ERFE+-A=+T—HI+=@EAHME &
ERBML EAARRRMIEFRRS-
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(8) AUDIT COMMITTEE

(9)

The audit committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
the Company’s annual reports and accounts, half-yearly
reports and quarterly reports and internal control
system of the Group and provide advice and comments
to the Board. The audit committee has three members
comprising the three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, Mr. WU Ming Yu, Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS
and Mr. WANG Hong Bo. Mr. WU Ming Yu is the
chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committees hold meetings on quarterly basis.
During the twelve months ended 31 December 2005,
the audit committee held four meetings during the
period and reviewed the Group’s annual report,
quarterly and interim financial results. The attendance
records of the aforementioned four audit committee
meetings are set out below:

Member 24=1
WU Ming Yu R
Paul CONTOMICHALOS
WANG Hongbo F AR
DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THEIR
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that they take full
responsibility in the preparation of the financial
statements.

Paul CONTOMICHALOS

(8) BXEESE

EIZEE BRI WEBRAIZER EHEE
EHAEREGEE - EREZER X ER
EHE%K RAZEEMERIKE FFW
TEMENRKNEE 2 AFPEEIEH|E -
mﬂﬁ%hf ERAREZ - BEZEZEEH
=B IEHNITEE R A B KA - Paul
CONTOMICHALOSY: A& K F 41 % %t A& 48
K RPABMEEREZRZEEG2ER-

ERZEEFERTERZ K -HE_ZEZT
AF+ZA=+—HIE+ZER BZHZEE
TERTOASH YEEHAEBIFE
WwE FTERPHMBER LM NREZ
ZEEERHFELHEHINAT:

Attendance of member at
audit committee During the year
ended 31 December 2005
BE-_ZTRFT-A=+t—-BLHFE

%&%Eamazmﬁ$
Attendance No Attendance Rate
o FE R # HE =
4/4 100%
4/4 100%
4/4 100%

0) EERBREFHUBRR2EE

EEFR RE2RAERBEVBERE-

S
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B #F & @ F o
Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 60 to
136 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair
view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies
are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those financial statements and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

31/F GloucesterTower &%

The Landmark FIREITEHNG
11 Pedder Street, Central EHM1E%

Hong Kong SAR HETITRNEINE

HEENREXERLF
(REAEHSFTMALZBERAA])
ERERR

AZBEE TN EZHNFE0EF 136 RRE
BAREHRAGBH M BEHREK-

EERERBMZEE

BERAIZEZRERBATARN T ZHBHREK-

RERFEAGEZEHE-

AIZEERBRBATERIEZBR HZE
MEBRRELBUER - AEAZERRERES
Rt 2 SRR E B EE A B Y RIT @R AR
EZABTAEMEMALTE FHABEERME(E-

BERZER
THERE SR AR B2 EREEOE
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An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances
of the Group and the Company, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company
as at 31 December 2005 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2006

ERBEOENRES XERAYEREF#
HEREEEEAN A NeETEEER
5 B R RR B B 2 B A (3R IR - B
BEr e RERTES BEER BAAY
AR ARETEMEAL R HREELS
S BE-

AITERETETEZITIER  JLARSE — A
TRRVBZERRBEERBR EAXRTHRER
ADZBE WREVBEREREEFEAERER
Bl FHABZHE-EREBRR NI5E
BERSHMBRRAMBENERRGES

W RITHE AT 2ERIRERTIERRE
VR ERE

g

it

TRRUYBBRREBEAFHRR EEER
SRR EERAF+A=+T—B2Z2HHBKMK
Ak BEEERBEZALFE 2 GNMRSR
B UYERBRBEEARAKIZBEERZER
B0
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HEBERRBR

As at 31 December 2005 R=—ZZHF+_-_HA=+—H

2005 2004
—EZEF —EENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
k=2 AR T ARET T
(Z7)
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- B R 5 6,561 6,256
New drug technology BB 6 2,600 2,510
Interests in associates REEERNF 2D 8 4,047 2,235
Held-to-maturity investment BEIHZKE 10 28,275 16,553
Unlisted investment FEETRE 9 9,396 6,080
50,879 33,634
Current assets RENE E
Work-in-progress £ 2 11 37,746 25,120
Trade receivables JEUWE 5 BR & 12 9,483 11,513
Prepayments, deposits and BRFE -EE R
other receivables H fth /& I 3R 13 19,437 17,675
Amounts due from related companies U EE QA 5K 1A 14 1,759 2,392
Pledged bank deposits EHERBRTEX - 9,811
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRRES 9,161 8,160
77,586 74,671
Total assets BERE 128,465 108,305
Equity &=
Share capital & 2 15 38,160 38,160
Reserves (ke 16 73,761 60,785
111,921 98,945
Minority interests DB R 2 3,054 3,190
114,975 102,135
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B E SRR 17 594 61
Accruals and other payables EETRIBREMENKIE 18 4,878 1,880
Receipt-in-advance 8 Uy Fx 18 4,262 3,721
Dividend payable JE AR 2 8 54 54
Interest-bearing borrowings GFEEE 19 3,000 -
Tax payable FE B 1R 702 454
13,490 6,170
Total equity and liabilities EakBEESE 128,465 108,305
Net current assets MEEEFE 64,096 68,501
Total assets less current liabilities BERLERTBDEE 114,975 102,135

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2006

Mr. William Xia GUO Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG
Director Director
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
financial statements.

RIZBEERFZA_TLRESE=SHE:

BERE REMEEL

5=
RERIE A SRR E R A -

E=
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As at 31 December 2005 R=—ZZHF+_-_HA=+—H

2005 2004
—EZHF —ETWF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
Bt 5 AR®BT T AREFTT
(E75))
Non-current assets EMBNE E
Property, plant and equipment M BE REE 5 36 51
Interests in subsidiaries RHE AR Z S 7 47,726 42,363
Held-to-maturity investment BFEIN2EE 10 28,275 16,553
76,037 58,967
Current assets MENE E
Other receivables H b fE W FR 1B 2,596 1,019
Amount due from a related company J& U B8 & Q /TAIE 14 25 25
Pledged bank deposits EHEMBETER - 9,811
Bank balances IR1T 45 5 248 442
2,869 11,297
Total assets BEBE 78,906 70,264
Equity % =
Share capital Fi N 15 38,160 38,160
Reserves & 16 34,587 28,700
72,747 66,860
Non-current liabilities ERBAEEGE
Amount due to a subsidiary XN ENGIE @] 2,656 2 693
Current liabilities mB B &
Other payables H b JE < 5k IR 18 401 657
Receipt-in-advance T8 I SR I8 48 =
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 19 3,000 =
Dividend payable FEI AR B 54 54
Total liabilities BERE 6,159 3,404
Total equity and liabilities EakBEEE 78,906 70,264
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE (BR) EEFE (634) 10,586
Total assets less current liabilities EEBBERRBEE 75,403 69,553
Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2006 RZEERF=-A-+tHEESSHf:

Mr. William Xia GUO
Director

Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

BEXE
5=
BERTH E R B RRE R D -
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

el s R

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2005 2004
—EERF —ETMF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
Bt 5 ARB TR ARBT T
(E5)
Turnover ERR 20 42,157 36,157
Cost of sales $H B B AR (20,121) (15,790)
Gross profit E 7 22,036 20,367
Other revenue H At W a5 21 949 2,980
Other income H A A 22 191 =
Administration expenses TR X2 (16,585) (11,867)
Profit from operation 45 5 A 6,591 11,480
Share of loss of associates FEAG B = A Rl B 1R 8 (188) -
Profit from ordinary activities BR AL AT B 5 275 i Al
before taxation 6,403 11,480
Taxation BIE 25 (887) (881)
Profit for the year N E i A 5,516 10,599
Attributable to: FEAG
Equity holders of the Company RATIERTFEA 5,644 10,683
Minority interests DR R E = (128) (84)
5,516 10,599
Earnings per share B & A 26
Basic AR 1.57 cents 2.97 cents
Diluted BE 1.56 cents 2.94 cents

All of the Group’s activities are classed as continuing.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

AEEMEFRBHARBERLE -

BERTH E R SRR E R D -
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HEHEmBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAREREAEL
Held-to-
Share-  maturity Statutory
based investments enterprise
payment reserve expansion Minority
Share reserve kZ Special Capital ~ Statutory fund  Retained interests
capital  RBHR BBz reserve  reseve  reseve  EELE  eamings 58 Total
R ff REEE RARE  EXBE  iERE  BREE  REBN  RREE &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2004, as RZEZME-A-R
previous reported (Fh2H) 38,160 - - 6,039 894 2,931 6,114 3,023 - 90,161
Eifect on adopting new GEE R
accounting policy a7+
~HKAS 1 -FRSHRENFR - - - - - - - - 870 870
Final 2003 dividend declared ~ —SZ=%BE R
AERE = = = = = = - (1,908) - (1,908)
Contribution from minority HYERRILE
shareholder - - - - 9 - - - - 9
Transfer g% - - - - - 403 403 (806) - -
Proft for the year REHH - - - - - - S 088 @) 1059
Minoriy interests upon “FHBARREL
investment in a subsidary HURRER - - - - - - - - 2404 2404
At 31 December 2004 RIZEME
tZR=1-A 38,160 - - 6,039 903 3,334 6,517 43,992 3,190 102,135
Opening adjustment on FhFennRR
adopting new accounting fEit 2 B E
policy
- HKAS 39 - BARIERF0% - - 5,500 - - - - - - 5,500
At 1 January 2005 R-EZR%-A-H
(restated) (&3)) 3,160 : 5,500 6,039 93 333 6517 439 3000 10763
Effect on adopting new FhfennRs
accounting policy 72
- HKAS 39 - BASERE0% = - 7,200 - - - - - - 7,200
- HKFRS 2 -ERIBREENFER - 258 - - - - - - - 258
Reversal of convertible bond ~ HERT BRES
reserve upon disposal fReE - - (5,500) - - - - - - (5,500)
Transfer to reserve e - - - - ) 218 218 (673) 8) (134)
Profit for the year FER&T - - - - - - - 5,644 (128) 5516
At 31 December 2005 R-821F
tZRZ+-H 38,160 258 7,200 6,039 894 3,612 6,795 48,963 3,054 114,975

The accompanying notes form

financial statements.

an integral part of these
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mELHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2005 2004
—EERF —_ETWMF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
ARBT R ARET T
(E51)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXBKCHERE
Profit before taxation B B AT A 6,403 11,480
Adjustments for: BRATRIEEL ZAE:
Allowance for trade receivables B E 5 RSB 4,594 968
Allowance for prepayments, deposits BRFIE e REM
and other receivables FE W TR IR B 4 755 -
Allowance for amounts due from related parties PR R A A IR R A 100 -
Allowance for work-in-progress R R 1,386 -
Depreciation and amortisation of property, IEN L
plant and equipment 2T E R 1,114 348
Share-based payment expenses &3 15 3R B 2 258 -
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets  EFE E 2 # 5 K RE 348 115
Interest income A (565) (1,986)
Operating cash flows before LEECEYA 2
movements in working capital KRERSNE 14,393 10,925
Increase in work-in-progress TE 24 a0 (14,012) (7,480)
Increase in trade receivables W 5 BR FUE N (2,564) (10,847)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and HERFKIE Ze RE R
other receivables IR N (2,517) (9,581)
Decrease in amounts due from related JE s 8 38 A R 3R
companies A 533 259
Increase in trade payables FEfT 8 5 BR 248 N 533 -
Increase in accruals and other payables J& &t 3UIE R E i g A 2,998 398
IR AN
Increase in receipt-in-advance B U SR IE L 541 1,513
Cash used in operations KEMARSE (95) (14,813)
Dividends paid BIRARE - (1,854)
Dividends paid to minority B DERFRE - (38)
People’s Republic of China enterprise BEHPREAREM
income tax paid I EMEN (639) (1,124)
Net cash used in operating activities REEBKFMARSTE (734) (17,829)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mELHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2005 2004
—ZERF —ZEEMF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
AR¥ TR ARET T
(E51)
Investing activities REED
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits EEARTEIRD G 0) 9,811 (9,811)
Increase of unlisted investment FE LR &L (3,316) (6,080)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BE KRR (1,788) (3,029)
Investment in associate REE DR ZKE (2,000) (2,235)
Proceeds from (investment)/disposal of (BE) HERFEINHKE
held-to-maturity investment FT13 3UE (4,522) 9,353
Interest received B WF 2 565 1,986
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE HE X
and equipment R 15 O 2 201
Increase in interest-bearing borrowings rEEE 3,000 -
Net cash from/(used in) investing RETBHRB/ (FA)R:
activities T 1,752 (9,615)
Financing activities MEE
Contribution (to)/from minority shareholder (Y EPNCIERE 2§
of a subsidiary (BxE) /HE (17) 2,451
Net cash (used in)/from financing METH (FTA) e
activities BeFRE (17) 2,451
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBESEENEM
cash equivalents (R 2) =8 1,001 (24,993)
Cash and cash equivalents at FOZEERBESEEY
beginning of the year 8,160 33,153
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZBGRESZEEY
end of the year 9,161 8,160

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

BERTH E R SRR E R D -
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BERREEARAT —TFAFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is Scotia Centre, 4th Floor, PO Box 2804, George Town,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries and
associates are set out in Notes 7 and 8 respectively.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of Venturepharm
Laboratories Limited have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (HKFRSs). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the, available-for-sale
financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements of Venturepharm
Laboratories Limited have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASs), and interpretations (Ints) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the financial statements comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

RAEHR

RARIRZZEE_FRHA=Z+T—HBREH
EHERRE(ZZEZEFBIIR) EHAE
HEIMA L AEREEREMERR BT
f 9% = B2 #b 41k & Scotia Centre, 4th Floor,
PO Box 2804, George Town, Grand
Cayman, Cayman lIslandse
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FIMT -BRAARAEN ZFBRRER
ERRMEMERFE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements.

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS

In 2005, the Group adopted the new/revised standards
and interpretations of HKFRS below, which are relevant
to its operations. The 2004 comparatives have been
restated as required, in accordance with the relevant
requirements.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates

HKAS 31 Investments in Joint Ventures

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and
Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

HKAS Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
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BERREEARAT —TFAFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 #Z

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 16,
21, 23, 24, 27, 28, 33 and HKAS-Ints 15 did not result
in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting

policies. In summary:

— HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority
interest, share of net after-tax results of associates
and other disclosures.

- HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 23, 27, 28, 33 and
HKAS-Ints 15 had no material effect on the Group’s

policies.

- HKAS 21 had no material effect on the Group’s
policy. The functional currency of each of the
consolidated entities has been re-evaluated based
on the guidance to the revised standard. All the
Group entities have the same functional currency
as the presentation currency for respective entity
financial statements.

- HKAS 24 has affected the identification of related

parties and some other related-party disclosures.

The adoption of HKAS 31 had no material effect on
the Group’s policy. The Group’s interests in jointly
controlled entities were accounted for by the equity
method.

The adoption of HKASs 32 and 39 has resulted in a
change in the accounting policy relating to the
classification of held-to-maturity investment. It has also
resulted in the recognition of derivative financial
instruments at fair value and the change in the
recognition and measurement of hedging activities.

CEERE+-A=t—-HLEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 #Z

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 2 has resulted in a change in
the accounting policy for share-based payments. Until
31 December 2004, the provision of share options to
employees did not result in an expense in the income
statements. From 1 January 2005, the Group expenses
the cost of share options in the income statement. As
a transitional provision, the cost of share options
granted after 7 November 2002 and had not yet vested
on 1 January 2005 was expensed retrospectively in

the income statement of the respective periods.

The adoption of HKFRS 3, HKAS 36 and HKAS 38
results in a change in the accounting policy for
goodwill. Until 31 December 2004, goodwill was:

— Amortised on a straight line basis over a period

ranging from 5 to 20 years; and

— Assessed for an indication of impairment at each
balance sheet date.

In accordance with the provisions of HKFRS 3:

— The Group ceased amortisation of goodwill from
1 January 2005;

— Accumulated amortisation as at 31 December
2004 has been eliminated with a corresponding

decrease in the cost of goodwill;

- From the year ended 31 December 2005 onwards,
goodwill is tested annually for impairment, as well

as when there is indication of impairment.

CEERE+-A=t—-HLEE
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BERREEARAT —TFAFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt ¥5 8 R M &F

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. XESTHBEMRE (&)
(Continued)
The Group has reassessed the useful lives of its AEERBEEBGTEREIBHK BT
intangible assets in accordance with the provisions of HEREE A HARLESEHT
HKAS 38. No adjustment resulted from this EYEH AR -
reassessment.
2005 2004
—EEAHEF —ZEZNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
AR® T AREET T
(E5)
The adoption of HKFRS 2 resulted in: A BB P IEREERF 2585 5
Increase in administrative expenses 17 BR B =2 38 N 258 -
Decrease in basic earnings per share & i% E 7K & F| 35 4 0.07 =
Decrease in diluted earnings per share & % 5% 2 F 5 2> 0.07 -
The adoption of HKAS 39 resulted in an increase in RN E B ERFERERN T H
opening reserves at 1 January 2005 by RMB5,500,000 F-RA-BZHUREENARE
and the details of the adjustments to the balance sheet 5,500,000t - R —ETRAF+ -_HA=+—
at 31 December 2005 and for the year then ended are BRBEZALFEZEERBERARF
as follows: BT
2005
—ETRF
RMB’000
(Restated)
AR®B T
(E75)
Increase in held-to-maturity investment HERE 2K EE N 11,722
Increase in unlisted investment JE ETIRE M 3,316

Increase in convertible bonds reserve Al $2 {5 18 5 (7 1 12 0 7,200
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt ¥5 8 R M &F

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

No early adoption of the following new Standards or
Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective. Unless otherwise stated, these HKFRSs are
effective for annual periods begining on or after 1
January 2006:

HKAS 1 Capital Disclosures
(Amendment)

HKAS 39 Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
(Amendment) Forecast Intragroup Transaction

HKAS 39 The Fair Value Option
(Amendment)

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Contracts
(Amendment)

HKFRS 7
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4

Financial Instruments: Disclosure
Determining whether an Arrangement contain
a Lease

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The
revised standard will affect the disclosure about
qualitative information about the Group’s objective,
policies and processes for managing capital;
quantitative data about what company regards as
capital; and compliance with any capital requirements
and the consequences of any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 will replace HKAS 32 and has modified the
disclosure requirements of HKAS 32 relating to financial
instruments. This HKFRS shall be applied for annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the
adoption of the other pronouncements listed above
will not have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements in the period of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt ¥5 8 R M &F

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A summary of significant accounting policies followed
by the Group and the Company in the preparation of
the financial statements is set out below:

(a) Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statement is historical cost as
modified for the revaluation of certain financial
assets as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The Group’s books and records are maintained in
Renminbi (“RMB”), the currency in which the
majority of the Group’s transactions is
denominated.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporated the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December each year.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the effects of the Group Reorganisation which has
been accounted for by using merger accounting.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. XESTHBEMRE (&)
(Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) MEEE (&)

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any
minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
the income statement.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,

as appropriate.

All significant inter-company transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.

AEBERWB S AR AERERB A
AAR-WERASRIBABTTEE
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BZAFE MKBERERAR X
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less any
identified impairment loss.

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of its
associates for the year. In the consolidated
balance sheet, interests in associates are stated
at the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associates, plus goodwill/less negative goodwill
in so far as it has not been written off/amortised/
released to income, less any identified impairment
loss.

Investment in joint venture

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by proportionate consolidation.
The Group combines its share of the joint ventures’
individual income and expenses, assets and
liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-line basis
with similar items in the Group’s financial
statements. The Group recognises the portion of
gains or losses on the sale of assets by the Group
to the joint venture that it is attributable to the
other venturers. The Group does not recognise its
share of profits or losses from the joint venture
that result from the Group’s purchase of assets
from the joint venture until it resells the assets to
an independent party. However, a loss on the
transaction is recognised immediately if the loss
provides evidence of a reduction in the net

realisable value of assets, or an impairment loss.

2.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Investment in joint venture (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of
jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Revenue recognition

Revenues from transfer of new drug development
and formulation data are recognised upon transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the compound and
data are delivered to customers.
Revenues from contracted research and

development, pharmaceutical application,
registration and testing services are recognised
to the extent of the milestone payments earned in
accordance with the applicable performance
requirements and contractual terms and, where
appropriate, as the related costs are incurred.
Payments received that are related to future
performance are deferred and recorded as
revenues as they are earned over the specified

future performance periods.

Subject to the terms as stated in the technology
transfer agreements and the buyers’ success in
commercialisation of the products to which the
technology transferred is applied, the Group may
receive additional royalty income or profit sharing
income in the future. Should there be any royalty
income or sharing of profit, they will be recognised
receive the income is

when the right to

established.

2.

TEETHEREBE (&)

(e) REELEZRE (B)

(®)

RARFEEABR NARZEHEE
ZIREBERARERE R R E-
ARAHEC W R KA B EE K AR
TR ERREIR

e 35 78 52

FEmnEafE R RBERmES
2 Mo ah OB ER A HE 2 LR K% (Bl 3R
R —BALANRERRTESZ
R e

EHE TR % RgERE - i KA
RIMES 2 Was DIRREERZE
TR RA LR M BRER 2 o B 3K
FMEBKAEELRE (EA) T AR
R AT BN R R B1TE B 2 RIBE B IE
TR EZERIBERIEERKEITH
Bk B e 51) 1 U 2 o

RS R RN 2 RRBRR T
BRI R E R 2 E s
B L - AN SR B AT R SR U BURE 1 A BT
WA B Fl) 5 F WA o fisd B (45 7
WA mF D F - BN YA B Y es
2 REF BETESL B T LARERR



76

BERREERRAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EEREER

At 75 8 = Mt &
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Royalty income on drugs produced by third parties
using the Group’s drug technology is recognised
when the right to receive is established.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are

delivered and title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the

interest rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost
less depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line

method, at the following rates per annum:

20%
10% — 20%
10% - 20%
20%

Leasehold improvements
Machinery
Furniture, fixture and equipment

Motor vehicles

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or
retirement of an asset is determined as the
difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) New drug technology development costs

(i)

Expenditure on research activities on new drug
technology is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated asset arising from new
drug technology development expenditure is
recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined
project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is
amortised on a straight line basis over its useful
life. Where no internally-generated intangible asset
can be recognised, new drug technology
development expenditure is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Investments

From 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004:

The Group classified its investments in securities,
other than subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, as non-trading securities and

trading securities.

2.
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BERREEARAT —TFAFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 #Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Investments (Continued)

Non-trading securities

Investments which were held for non-trading
purpose were stated at fair value at the balance
sheet date. Changes in the fair value of individual
securities were credited or debited to the
investment revaluation reserve until the security
was sold, or was determined to be impaired. Upon
disposal, the cumulative gain or loss representing
the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant security,
together with any surplus/deficit transferred from
the investment revaluation reserve, was dealt with

in the income statement.

Where there was objective evidence that individual
investments were impaired the cumulative loss
recorded in the revaluation reserve was taken to

the income statement.

Trading securities

Trading securities were carried at fair value. At
each balance sheet date, the net unrealised gains
or losses arising from the changes in fair value of
trading securities were recognised in the income
statement. Upon disposal, profits or losses were
recognised in the income statements for the
difference between the net sales proceeds and

the carrying amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Investments (Continued)

From 1 January 2005 onwards:

The Group classifies its investments in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the investments were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates
this designation at every reporting date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

This category has two sub-categories:
financial assets held for trading, and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are
also categorised as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if
they are either held for trading or are
expected to be realised within 12 months of
the balance sheet date.
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BERREEARAT —TFAFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Investments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor
with no intention of trading the receivable.
They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date. These are classified
as non-current assets.

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities

that the Group’s management has the positive

intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives financial assets that they are
included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the balance

sheet date.
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VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2005

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 #Z

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Investments (Continued)

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Purchases and sales of investments are
recognised on trade-date - the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognized at
fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Investments are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Realized and unrealised gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the 'financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are included in the
income statement in the period in which they
arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of non-
monetary securities classified as available-
for-sale are recognised in equity. When
securities classified as available-for-sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments are included in the income
statement as gains or losses from investment

securities.
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BERREEARAT —TFAFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Investments (Continued)

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. If the market for
a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted
securities), the Group establishes fair value
by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis, and option pricing models refined

to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered in
determining whether the securities are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in the
income statement - is removed from equity
and recognized in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not

reversed through the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)

Impairment of assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment of
assets, or whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the year in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when
the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant policy for that

revalued asset.

i Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its net selling price and value in
use. The net selling price is the amount
obtainable from the sale of an asset in an
arm’s length transaction while value in use is
the present value of estimated future cash
flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of any asset and from its disposal at the
end of its useful life. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group
of asset that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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BERREEARAT —TFAFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
of goodwill is reversed only if the loss was
caused by a specific external event of an
exceptional nature that is not expected to
recur, and the increase in recoverable amount
relates the reversal effect of that specific
event.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the income
statement in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is

impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (ie. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the impairment

loss is recognized in profit and loss.

The Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individual significant, and
individually or collectively for financial assets that
are not individual significant. If it is determined
that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial assets,
whether significant or not, the asset is included in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and that group is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be
recognized are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

U

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
impairment was recognized, the previous
recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognsied in the income statement, to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset does not

exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective that an impairment loss on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over
the periods necessary to match with them with
the related costs. Grant related to expense items
are recognised in the same period as those
expenses are charged in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 #Z

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Work-in-progress

(n)

(0)

Work-in-progress is stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost, which comprises
all costs of purchase and, where applicable, cost
of development including costs that have been
incurred for the provision of pharmaceutical
application, registration and testing services, is
calculated using the first-in, first out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognized in the
income statement.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Taxation (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit is the profit for
the year, determined in accordance with the rules
established by the taxation authorities, upon which

income taxes are payable.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
difference can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than
a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 #Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

(p)

()

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also dealt with in equity.

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the income statement on a straight
line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than RMB are
translated at the rates ruling on the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in such currencies are re-translated
at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date.
Profits and losses arising on exchange are dealt

with in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 #Z

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Foreign currencies (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognized as a separate component of

equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognized in the income

statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Foreign currencies (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate.

Retirement benefits scheme

The retirement benefit scheme contributions
arising from the People’s Republic of China (“the
PRC”) municipal government retirement scheme
charged to the income statement represent
contributions paid or payable by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the Scheme.

Provision

Provisions for environmental restoration,

restructuring costs and legal claims are
recognized when: the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognized for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the balance sheet.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest risk and price risk), credit risk,
liquidity risk and cash flow interest-rate risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures.

(a) Market risk — Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because investments held by the
Group are classified on the consolidated
balance sheet either as available-for-sale
financial assets or as held-to-maturity financial
assets. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, Group Treasury aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available.

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

3.2 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale
securities) is based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price; the appropriate quoted market
price for financial liabilities is the current ask price.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the
counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based
on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes
for similar instruments are used for long-term debt.
Other techniques, such as estimated discounted
cash flows, are used to determine fair value for

the remaining financial instruments.

The nominal value less estimated credit
adjustments of trade receivables and payables
are assumed to approximate their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for
similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
accounting estimates and judgements need to be
made. The Group evaluates these based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equate the related
actual results. Estimates and assumptions that may
have a significant risk of causing material adjustments
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there
has been impairment of intangible assets in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2(j). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units are determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates and assumptions made by
management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other
assumptions underlying the value-in-use
calculations.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
(Continued)

(b) Trade debtors

(c)

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor
balances are collectible and follow up actions are
promptly carried out if the agreed credit periods
have been exceeded. However, from time to time,
the Group may experience delays in collection.
Where recoverability of trade debtor balances are
called into doubts, specific provisions for bad and
doubtful debts are made based on credit status
of the customers, the aged analysis of the trade
receivable balances and write-off history. Certain
receivables may be initially identified as
collectible, yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the related
receivable to the income statement. Changes in
the collectibility of trade receivables for which
provisions are not made could affect our results

of operations.

Useful lives of fixed assets

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates
the useful lives of fixed assets in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expenses
to be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at
the time the asset is acquired based on historical
experience, the expected usage, wear and tear
of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence
arising from changes in the market demands or
service output of the assets. The Group also
the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be

performs annual reviews on whether

valid.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
(Continued)

(d) Impairment of work-in-progress

(e)

Provision for slowing-moving work-in-progress is
made based on the ageing and accomplishment
of certain milestone stage such as clinical studies
permit during the process of development. The
assessment of the provision amount required
involving management judgement and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of work-
in-progress and provision charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable, an assessment of the carrying
amount of that asset will be performed. Triggering
events include significant adverse changes in the
market value of an asset, changes in the business
or regulatory environment, or certain legal events.
The interpretation of such events requires
judgment from management with respect to
whether such an event has occurred. Upon the
occurrence of triggering events, the carrying
amounts of non-current assets are reviewed to
assess whether their recoverable amounts have
declined below their carrying amounts. The
recoverable amount is the present value of
estimated net future cash flows which the Group
expects to generate from the future use of the
asset, plus the assets residual value on disposal.
Where the recoverable amount of non-current
its carrying value, an
impairment loss is recognised to write the assets
down to its recoverable amount.

assets is less than
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 5. ¥ -BERZE

Furniture,
fixtures and

Leasehold equipment Motor
improvement  Machinery  fR#i~%E  vehicles Total
BEEE G k#f RE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBTR ARETT ARBTT ARETR
THE GROUP AEH
COST KR
1 January 2004 RZZTWE—-A—H 931 4,446 1,369 692 7,438
Additions = 77 1,921 455 576 3,029
Disposal o & - (398) - - (398)
At 31 December 2004 RZEEWE+=A=1—H 1,008 5,969 1,824 1,268 10,069
Additions 1R 698 682 408 - 788
Disposal HE - (2) (4) - (6)
Reclassification ENNE 72 (812) 734 6 -
At 31 December 2005 R-ZZRE+T_A=1-H 1,778 5,837 2,962 1,274 851
DEPRECIATION ?ﬁé
1 January 2004 “ZENFE-R—H 390 1,759 360 208 2,117
Charge for the year M&i it 221 694 255 123 1,293
Reversal on disposal Hj’é e - (197) - - (197)
At 31 December 2004 —ZEMET_A=1+-H 611 2,256 615 331 3,813
Charge for the year ME& it 223 714 438 106 1,481
Reversal on disposal HERZE = (1) (3) = (4)
Reclassification E%ﬁ P E (184) (269) 453 - -
At 31 December 2005 “EERETZRA=T—H 650 2,700 1,508 437 5,290
NET CARRYING AMOUNT REE)‘%E
At 31 December 2005 RZEERE+-A=1—H 1,128 3,137 1,459 837 6,561
At 31 December 2004 “FEMETZRA=T—H 397 3,713 1,209 937 6,256
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 5. ¥ -BERRE (&)

Furniture, fixtures
and equipment

HER - HEBEREE
RMB’000
ARETTT
THE COMPANY ¥ NN
COST AR 2
At 1 January 2004 RZZEZTWME—H—H 41
Additions 385 34
At 31 December 2004 R-ZZEZENFE+-_A=+—H 75
Additions 188575 _
At 31 December 2005 R-ZBFAF+_HA=1+—-H 75
DEPRECIATION wE
At 1 January 2004 RZZEETWME—H—H 10
Charge for the year RNEE T H 14
At 31 December 2004 R_ZEZEME+_A=+—H 24
Charge for the year REFZ T H 15
At 31 December 2005 R_ZEZRF+_-_A=+—8H 39
NET CARRYING AMOUNT BREFEE
At 31 December 2005 R-ZEERFE+=-_A=+—H 36
At 31 December 2004 R_ZEZEME+_A=+—H 51
Depreciation expense of RMB1,117,000 (2004: ARMA,117,000C (ZEZ WM F: AR
RMB956,000) has been expensed in cost of goods 956,000t ) & A R#364,000T (ZZZ I
sold and RMB 364,000 (2004: RMB337,000) in F: AR¥337,00000) ERXDRINE S

administrative expenses. EmK AN RITERRAS R E
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For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

6. NEW DRUG TECHNOLOGY 6. FTEERIM
RMB’000
(Restated)
ARETTT
(&%)
THE GROUP rEE
COST OR VALUATION AL E
At 1 January 2004 RZZEZTWME—H—H -
Transfer from work-in-progress RAFEERFEA TR R
during the year 2,625
At 31 December 2004 R_ZEEMEF+_A=+—H 2,625
Additions R 137
Transfer from work-in-progress RAFEEREEER M
during the year 301
At 31 December 2005 R_ZEERAF+_-_A=+—H 3,063
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B KRR E
At 1 January 2004 R-ZZETWMF—-—H—H -
Amortisation charge for the year REFEH B 115
At 31 December 2004 R-ZZEEMEF+_A=+—H 115
Amortisation charge for the year NEFEET N 348
At 31 December 2005 R_ZEEAF+_-_A=+—H 463
NET CARRYING AMOUNT BREFE
At 31 December 2005 R_ZEZERFE+_A=+—H 2,600
At 31 December 2004 R-_ZEEMEF+_A=+—H 2,510

The intangible assets included above have finite useful
lives, over which the assets are amortised. The
amortisation period for development costs incurred on
the Group’s new drug technology is five years and
were assessed for impairment at 31 December 2005.

Details were set out in note 4(a).

LRI EREEAEGRERAFH RN
5% E% HA ) P 4 8 o AN (B 3T 2 R 1y PO %
BRAZEERRARFT YR _STHF
T A=+—HEHFERE-EEFEHR
RHFE4(a) °
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1.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 7. REBARZER
2005 2004
—EERF —ETMF
RMB’000 RMB$'000
(Restated)
AR T ARET T
(E5)
Unlisted shares, at cost IE TR - AR 30,374 30,374
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W Bf /8 & = 5k IR 17,352 11,989
47,726 42,363
The cost of the unlisted shares is based on the book FELTRHDZEANDRASEREEEH
value of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries HEEHMEB AR EEEEFERAEE -
attributable to the Group on the date of the Group
Reorganisation.
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, e (AT BB AREAERE 25
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. The REEEERGER-BRARIEHARGEHEA
amounts will not be repayable within twelve months BT =@ AREE Bt BRI

from the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the amounts mBBEEZ7-

are shown as non-current.
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7. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 7. RMIBARZRERS (£)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as RKAalRZEERFF+-_A=+—HZ=E
at 31 December 2005 are as follows: EBERRIFENT:

Place of
incorporation/ Attributable
establishment/  Registered equitable
Company operations and fully interest held
Name Legal status  EMR L,/ paid capital Fres 45 Principal activities
NEER EE AL RY/Bens HERRARKRE ey §5 TEXEK
Directly Indirectly
E# F:
Dezhong VP Joint venture  Beijing, the PRC ~ RMB7,154,420 - 94512%  The research and development of new drug
ERE2 B HEER ARET 1544207 (note (a)) preparation, raw materials, supplementary
(B 3£ (a)) materials (excipients and additives) and
biodrugs; technological transfer and services
MERAERELA R BERAMH
(BVERANE) REDER:
BUEEIUS
Hainan Sinican Private Hainan, the PRC ~ US$360,000 - 100%  The research, development and production
Bio-labs company  HEEE 360,000% 70 of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
Limited hERH drugs; technological transfer of and
services for the research and development
of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic and clinical
research of drugs
R BEREEER RABRRAKER:
RRRBEENER RABRRAREML
RTEERRY: Em BHMHERGRAR
Hanzhong Private Hanzhong, US$600,000 - 51%  Sales and manufacturing of Active
Venturepharm company the PRC 600,000% 70 Pharmaceutical Ingredients products
Pharm-Chemical 7% 72 & HEER HEREEEREARNER
Company Ltd.
PK. Private Mumbai, India INR 100,000 - 50% Inactive
Pharmatech company HEZE 100,000E0 & E Lt (note (b)) VEREEHK
Private Limited ~ FA 227 GEA)
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7. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 7. RMIBARZRERS (£)
Place of
incorporation/ Attributable
establishment/  Registered equitable
Company operations and fully interest held
Name Legal status  #FMAL/ paid capital Fris 4G Principal activities
nAER EE A RY/BEny SRRAZRE Rxgs TERH
Directly Indirectly
E# F:
V Biopharm Joint venture  Beijing, the PRC ~ RMB1,655,747 = 100%  The research, development and
B2bt B HEER AR 1,655 7477 production of drugs, natural

drugs and synthetic drugs;
technological transfer of and
services for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs
HE REREEER RAAERRANEm:
RERAEEDER RAERRAKER
ZRMBRRIRG: B2 EUHR

0

REGRHE
Venturepharm Private British Virgin US$100 100% - Investment holding
Laboratories company Islands 100E T REAR
(BVI) Limited ~ FL&AA RERAES
(“VP (BVI)")
Venturepharm Private Hong Kong, PRC  HK$10,000 = 100% Inactive
Life Science company ~ FEIEE 10,0007 7T T EFARES
Capital Limited ~ FL2 Al
CEL
REBERAA
Venovo Private British Virgin US$1 100% - Investment holding
Pharma US company Islands 1% BB R
Inc. R RERAES
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For the year ended 31 December 2005 #Z

1.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as

&t

at 31 December 2005 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/

operations
Name Legal status  HEMA L/
NEER EE B R/ GEhE
TrRERER Private Beijing, the PRC
BERK company  FEIR
BRAA D
Notes:

(a)

(b)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or any time during

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between the

CEERE+-A=t—-HLEE

7. REBRARzHERS (&)

Group and the minority shareholder of Dezhong VP, the

minority shareholder agree to waive its 4.488% profit

sharing in Dezhong VP for the three years ending 31
December 2005. Accordingly, the Group’s profit sharing
in Dezhong VP for the year was changed from 94.512%

to 99%.

The Group held major representation of the board of

directors in this company.

the year.

—EFAFFT_A=+—HZ=E

Principal activities

TEEH

The research, development and production of
drugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
technological transfer of and services for
the research and development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamic and clinical
research of drugs

R BEREEER RAERRAKER:
HERREENER 7:9* &érﬁ?%u“u
ZRMERRIRE w2 EUH R
RERHE

BEAEEREREE2Z PHERFITLH
BE PERREREREEMHOHERES
HE-_ZTZRAF+-_A=+t—BHI=@A%
[€ 2 4.488% )% K| o B It AN &= B R AR F E MG
BEREE ZEHNHI4.512%F REI9% °

PINY/N
2t
Attributable
Registered equitable
and fully interest held
paid capital Fr s B 4G
AMRMERE N £
Directly Indirectly
E& F:
US$200,000 - 100%
200,000% 7
B 5 -
(a)
(b)
B B
1] f&

AEEEZARLEZTETREARZEE
fiz o

DAY AR B AN A A B R A AR AT
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ABRARE

8. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 8. MREELNTZER
THE GROUP
rEH
2005 2004
—EEAHEF —ZEZMF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
ARETR ARBT T
(E751)
As at 1 January w—A—H 2,235 =
Additions in investment cost 1B AN E A 2,000 2,235
Share of associates’ results FEAE B & R R R
— loss before taxation — BR i A & 18 (188) =
— taxation — IR - -
— minority interest —LERRER - =
As at 31 December n+=-—A=+—H 4,047 2,235
Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2005, RZEZERAFT+ZA=1+—H BARQAMH
which is held indirectly by the Company, are as follows: BEACASEBENRFEOT:
Name of associate Place of incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenue  Profit/(loss) Interest held
BeENTEB T ALt B BE 8 W& RA(FR) FiEaER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETTT
Zhejiang Dankong Zhejiang, the PRC
Venturepharm BT
Co. Ltd 4,966 - - - 45%
BEERXALY Hainan, the PRC
HERERAA HEEE 2,148 116 = (469) 40%
NovaDerm Inc. British Virgin Islands 2,000 2,000 - - 40%
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9. UNLISTED INVESTMENT 9.

Prior to the adoption of the new HKFRSs, unlisted
investment represented investment in non-trading
securities and trading securities, other than
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities.
As at 31 December 2004, the unlisted investment

comprised of the followings:—

FLmRE

R BB B RELRNF IFLEHIRER
KB AR B2 2 F R AR ZE G E 8 LAS
HEERBFLEERHFZIRE-R_FFNO

F+A=+—H kLTREBHE:

THE GROUP
rEE
2005 2004
—EEREF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
ARBTR ARBTT
(&%)
Unlisted investment BAEBEINCIELETIRE
outside Hong Kong 9,396 6,080

Following the adoption of new HKFRSs on 1 January
2005, the unlisted investment is reclassified into four
different categories depends on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired. As at 31 December
2005, the Group has an investment in bonds traded in
an active market and an unlisted investment outside

Hong Kong.

R-ZFZRFE-A - HARAMBETHR
SEANR FLETRERTFEARERRE
MOBESOETRERN R_FTTRF+ =
A=1T—R AEERENERTHEER
FREBEBRIIFLTRE
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9.

UNLISTED INVESTMENT (Continued)

According to HKAS 32 and 39, investment in bonds
was reclassified into held-to-maturity investment as
detailed in Note 10 below. Unlisted investment outside
Hong Kong is reclassified into available-for-sale
financial assets as follows:—

FLHRE (&)

REBEEBGHERIFERLRIK EBHFREE
FOBRFEINRZIRE  FIFEN T H
10 - FARINFELHRENEHDOERA
HEESRHEED

THE GROUP

KEE

RMB’000

AR®ET T

As at 1 January 2004 RZZEZTWE—H—H =

Reclassification upon adoption of HKAS 39 RWES ST ERIFEIRBEHHE 6,080

As at 31 December 2004 RZEENMFE+_A=+—H 6,080
Amount due from unlisted investment FEUW BB IRINIE LT

outside Hong Kong & & 2 5RIB (K1 aE34(b)(i)

(Note 34 (b)(i)) 3,316
As at 31 December 2005 R_ZEERFE+_-_A=+—H 9,396
Listed/Unlisted investment Em/ELEmES
— investment in unlisted investment —REBRINELMEREZKRE

outside Hong Kong 6,080

— Amount due from unlisted — I LETIRE 2 HIE
investment 3,316
9,396

The amounts due from/(to) the unlisted investment are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment
terms. The amounts will not be repayable within twelve
months from the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the
amounts are shown as non-current. Details were
disclosed in note 32(b).

FEUL, (FEAT) 3E L HIREKIBRMEIEM &
BREEEEERI -BRARAZGANGEE
B+ @8 AEE Bit- B RFA
FRBEEZ B BFBERME32(0)E

o
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9. UNLISTED INVESTMENT (Continued) 9. ¥LWmERE (&)
Particulars Percentage
of issued of equity
and paid-up  attributable
Place of registered to the Principal
Name of Company incorporation capital Company activities
ERITRBE AOEERL
NG o iR B 3L 3t B EfRAFEE EEEIL FEER
Hainan Pioneer Hainan, the PRC 32,000,000 19%  Sales and manufacturing of
Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. HEEEE Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients products
HEREEBREB KD Em
10. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENT 10. K23z E
THE THE
GROUP COMPANY
rEE AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
ARBF T ARBT T
(&%)
As at 1 January 2004 RZZEZTWE—H—H = =
Reclassification upon adoption KBS g8
of HKAS 39 FEIR R EH H M 16,553 16,553
As at 31 December 2004 RZEENMFE+_A=+—H 16,553 16,553
Opening adjustment on adoption RN E S ER|
of HKAS39 E39 2 F IR E 5,500 5,500
Additions R 21,075 21,075
Effect on adoption of HKS 39 HMB B ST EREIR 2w & 7,200 7,200
Disposal & (22,053) (22,053)
As at 31 December 2005 RZEERF+_A=+—H 28,275 28,275
Held-to-maturity investment include BEINB2EEBRE
the following: LATRIER :
— Two convertible bonds — M3 Al R IR & 75 28,275 28,275

The held-to-maturity investment of RMB28,275,000 had
been pledged to secure bank overdraft granted to the

AEEERBETAEE ZRITEERRF
ERH 2 RE AR 28,275,000 °
Group.
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10. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENT (Continued) 10. B2 HZ2RE (&)
Details of the investment bonds included the KEBSFFBEBRRE:
followings:—
Bond issuer Terms/Maturity period Interest rate Cost
BERTA 8/ BR X B A&

LLOYDS TSB BANK

15 years USD callable dual range accrual note 2005-2020 8.6% coupon rate USD700,000
LLOYDS TSB BANK
15FEMETABOEERARIE —_EERFE_ZT_ZTF ZB%R86E  700,000% 7T

DEUTSCHE BANK AG LONDON BRANCH
15 years USD callable non-inversion 2005-2020 8.3% coupon rate USD1,900,000
DEUTSCHE BANK AG LONDON BRANCH

15FERETAERAEENES —ETRFE-_ZT-TF Z S K83E 1,900,000% T
11. WORK-IN-PROGRESS 1. E&8 M
THE GROUP
rEE
2005 2004
—EZERF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
AR T ARET T
(2%))
Work-in-progress — contracted EEGE - B4 (7))
(note (a)) 13,393 9,183
Work-in-progress — not-contracted ER G — R4 (K sE(b))
(note (b)) 29,611 19,809
Allowance for work-in-progress R mEE (5,258) (3,872)
37,746 25,120

109



110

BERREEARAT —TFAFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt ¥5 8 R M &F

For the year ended 31 December 2005 #Z

11. WORK-IN-PROGRESS (Continued)

12.

Notes:

(a)

(c)

The balance represents the project costs incurred for
the contracted research and development,
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services, but have not met the extent of the milestone
payments earned in accordance with the applicable
performance requirements and contractual terms.

The balance comprises of development costs incurred
with the intention of outright sales as technology transfer
but have not been contracted.

At 31 December 2005, the carrying amount of work-in-
progress that were carried at net realisable value
amounted to RMB2,978,000 (2004: RMB3,023,000).

Details of assessment for impairment are set out in Note

4(d).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

CEERE+-A=t—-HLEE

1. B8 (&)

(a) ZAEHBIEE R 2T R s SLE R

i 1l R B 5 AR 7% 2 A 2 I8 B RS - M A 1)
N E ‘J%EEZEF&HF%

Uit HR 4R 8 22 [ TR IR

(c)

12. EWE SR

EF

(7] {68 3 i 7K Al

[\\y

?E%IEE HEZRE

— B AR B IR %

@%%@EEAE%zwsmo
F: AR #3,023,0007T) °

Z P
5 = A BT aE4(d) ©

The fair value of trade receivables are as follow:— EREZFERZ AFEWDT
2005 2004
—EZERF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
AR®F T AREFIT
(&%)
Trade receivables — net FEWE Z R FEE 9,483 11,5613

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days
to its trade customers. The aging analysis of trade

AEERRTHEEZEPZVYHEENS
B NEEAAXREERYE Z RN 2Rk

receivables of the Group at the balance sheet date is 2R CNE
as follows:

2005 2004
—EERF —ZEZMF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
AR T ARET T
(&%)
Within 90 days 90H A 6,714 9,663
91 - 180 days 91H & 180H 1,546 1,412
181 - 365 days 181H £365H 1,223 438
9,483 11,513

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate
their fair values.

RKREZERZEEHEREAFERSE
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13. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The prepayments, deposits and other receivables are

13. ANREAE - REREMENSRE

BNFE -Re REMENRERAT:

as follow:—
2005 2004
—EEREF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(restated)
ARB TR ARET T
(&%)
Prepayments T8 5RIE 3,925 1,705
Deposits bigeia 3,082 787
Other receivables H & < 5K IE 12,430 15,183
19,437 17,675
14. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 14. BWEE A B RIE
Details of the amounts due from related companies JEWRBEE R RIRIB 2B :
are as follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEH ¥ NN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EEHF —EEZME —EZHF —TEMF
RMB$°000 RMB$’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(restated) (restated)
Name of Companies NGRS ARB T ARBT T ARB TR ARET T
(&51) (7))
Sanmenxia Sinoway =PIk E R 4
Pharmaceutical B %5 R N\ )
Co., Ltd. (“Sinoway ([ B
Pharmaceutical”) 2Ez|) 1,496 812 - =
Venturepharm Inc. Venturepharm Inc.
(“VP Inc.”) (TVP Inc.]) 263 1,580 25 25
1,759 2,392 25 25
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14. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES

(Continued)

Both companies are the subsidiaries of the Company’s
substantial shareholders.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The maximum balance due from Sinoway
Pharmaceutical and VP Inc. for the year ended 31
December 2005 was RMB1,496,000 and RMB 1,580,000

respectively.

Sinoway Pharmaceutical is the subsidiary of the
Company’s substantial Shareholder. It is a domestic
owned enterprise established in the PRC. For the year
ended 31 December 2005, a continuous payment of
expenses was made by the Company on behalf of
Sinoway Pharmaceutical (the “Transaction”). According
to GEM Listing Rules, announcement should be made
for the Transactions.

14. EWBEERATRIE (&)

MEQRRHBARBETERRZMBEBAF-

BERFASERN 28 ARERERE-

BEHBBERVP Inc REE-_ZERET
— A=t HIEFEZEeERFTEDF
A AR ®A1,496,0007T & A R # 1,580,000

JG o

BB ESARBEIERR 2 MBEAF-
ABRAFBERIZAERBLE-REBEE_F
TRF+-_A=1T—HLFE XREFE
BREHARESINAX (IR5]) RIZA
EWRETHRA B S TIE QM-
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15. SHARE CAPITAL 15. B
Number of Shown in
ordinary the financial
share Amount statements
EERHA 8 MEERITR
HK$'000 RMB’000
FHT ARBT T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREE10E T2 E@RK
Authorised: EE R
At 31 December 2004 and RZEZTMF
31 December 2005 +=ZA=+—H
R_ZZERF
+ZA=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000 106,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At 31 December 2004 and RZEZTMF
31 December 2005 +=-—A=+—H
R_ZERF
+ZA=+—H 360,000,000 36,000 38,160
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16. RESERVES 16. f# &
THE GROUP rEE
Share- Statutory
based Convertible enterprise
payment bond  Special  Capital Statutory expansion Retained Minority
reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve fund earnings Sub-Total interests Total
Rt TER EELE HERR

B BERE BHERE KGR AERR BRER RERY Mt BE A
RVB000 RMBOOO RMB'00O RMBOO0 RMBO00 RMBOO0 RMBOOO RMB000 RMB000  RMBY00
ARBTL ARBTR ARBTR ARBTRL ARBTL ARMTT ARMTL ARETT ARBTRL ARBTR

At 1 January 2004 RZZZME
-R-H - - 6,039 894 2,931 6,1
Effect on adopting R e R
new accounting policy ~ ZF2

4 36028 52,001 - 52,001

- HKAS 1 -EREHE
1% - - - - - - - - 870 870
Final 2003 BEER
dividend declared ZEECE
AERE - - - - - - (1,908)  (1,908) - (1,908)
Contribution from PERELE
minority shareholder - - - 9 - - - 9 - 9
Transfer g% - - - - 403 403 (806) - - -
Profit for the year REE & = = = - - - 10,683 10,683 (84) 10,599
Minority interest il
upon investment REREZDH
in a subsidiary hxEs - - - - - - - - 2404 2,404
At 31 December 2004  R-ZZTWE
+ZR=1-A - - 6,039 908 3,334 6,517 43,992 60,785 3,190 63,975
Opening adjustment RetBR
on adopting new LENRE
accounting policy
- HKAS 39 -EREHE
£30% - 5,500 - - - - - 5,500 - 5,500
At 1 January 2005 R-ZTHE
(restated) —A—H(&5]) = 5,500 6,039 908 3,334 6,517 43,992 66,285 3,190 69,475
Effect on adopting R R
new accounting policy 72
- HKAS 39 -EREHE
2305 - 7200 - - - - - 7,000 - 7200
- HKFRS 2 -ERRBRE
S0 258 - - - - - - 258 - 258
Reversal of convertible  HERERAHR
bond reserve upon EARE
disposal - (5,500) - - - - - (5,500) - (5,500)
Transfer g% - - - 9) 278 278 (673) (126) (8) (134)
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - - 5644 5644 (128) 5516

At 31 December 2005  R_Z2n%
+-B=+-8 258 7,200 6,039 894 3,612 6,795 48963 73761 3054 76,815
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16. RESERVES (Continued) 16. &M (&)

THE COMPANY AT

al

Share-based Convertible

payment bonds Accumulated
reserve reserve Capital Contributed (loss)/profit
A3 3 5% WEK  reserve  surplus it Total
fiff EHEEE EXRE  BHER (BB /EH &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARETT AREBTR ARETR
As at 1 January 2004 R-ZEEWNE-F—H - = 894 28,011 1,957 30,862
Final 2003 Dividend declared EER-ZE=F
RER B - - - - (1,908) (1,908)
Net loss for the year rEEBRFE - - = = (254) (254)
As at 31 December 2004 RZEEMEF
+-B=+-A - - 894 28,011 (205) 28,700
Opening adjustment on Rt BEe
adopting new accounting FNRE-BAEH
policy - HKAS 39 8% 395 - 5,500 - - - 5,500
At 1 January 2005 (restated) H-ZZh%—A—H
(7 - 5,550 894 28,011 (205) 34,200
Effect on adopting new RwnedBRey g
accounting standards
- HKAS 39 - BB G ERE30% - 7,200 - - - 7,200
- HKFRS 2 - ERMHREER
EVL 258 - - - - 258
Reversal of convertible bond i & 4 & B o] 2
reserve upon disposal EFGEE - (5,500) - - - (5,500)
Net loss for the year rEEFBFE - - - - (1571) (1,571)
At 31 December 2005 R_Z2Z0F
+-B=+-A 258 7,200 894 28,011 (1776) 34587
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16. RESERVES (Continued) 16. &M (&)

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the
PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation
for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where
the reserve balance has reached 50% of the
subsidiaries’ paid-up capital). The reserve fund can
only be used, upon approval by the board of directors
and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated

losses or increase capital.

Statutory enterprise expansion fund

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the
PRC shall appropriate 5% to 10% of its net profit after
taxation as the statutory enterprise expansion fund.
The directors shall have discretion in determining the
percentage within the range specified by the relevant

PRC laws and regulations.

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the differences between
the nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI), the
company which was the holding company of other
members of the Group prior to the Group
Reorganisation, and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued thereof pursuant to the Group

Reorganisation.

REABEFEEGISERZBRTE  RARR
REKZ M BARAGERBRAENZ
10%BANEERRHERES EERBER
EMBARBEHRAL0% - HEEZERA
BRI BRAIEMEN EEAEEES
RIARAM B A -

EELEXBRES

RIEH R BEGI RIER 2 E  RNARR
FERZZMB AR EBERBEELR 2
5%ZE10REAEZELELERES-EST
BIEE BT BEG RERMEE < EEM
MiEEER -

BRI E

BRlEwmEEVP BV) (REEENAEE
HMp B AR ZERAR) BIHEERER
AIRIESEBEAM T2 K EERERE
ZERe
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16. RESERVES (Continued)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional
contributions made by the shareholders of the
Company prior to the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange and the additional contributions
made by the minority shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Company during the year.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the net assets of the
subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the
Group Reorganisation.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
its shareholders comprise share premium, capital
reserve, contributed surplus and accumulated profit
which in aggregate amounted to RMB34,587,000 (2004:
RMB28,700,000). In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends shall be payable out
of the profit or other reserves, including the share
premium account, of the Company and, under the
Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman Islands,
the Company must be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately

following the distribution of dividend.

16. & (&)

EXRFEE

ERFEREEANRARERRARRBRNE
B P EM AT E 2 BBINEE AR AR
MEBARDBBRERERRNFEANMIEEIINTE

ARAZEBBBRRENBLRRAZEES
BERARRREEBEHEITUMERRZ
BRPEEMERZZ8E-

RARAIESIETRE 2 FESERD R
B BEAFE BERAKREIRT A aHA
R ®34,587,000C (ZEZWF: AR
28,700,0007T) * IRIBEA N R EIR BN
ZB% B R B AR Al F 3 E fth 7 7 R R
(BERMHEER) WM BERSEHS 2
REAVE(ZETZFEEFIR) - ARAEEER
BIRBERBE 2% A B B EEH E
ZIEE-
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17. TRADE PAYABLES

The fair value of trade payables are as follow:—

17. EHEZER

RNESERZAFERAT:

2005 2004

—EEAHEF —ZETMF

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

AR® T ARBT T

(&%)

Trade payables BT E S ER R 594 61

The Group receives an average credit period of 90

days from its trade suppliers. The aging analysis of

trade payables of the Group at the balance sheet date

is as follows:

BHHERERTASEZYHEENS
WA REEAAKERNE SRR KK

DT :

2005 2004

—EEREF —EENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

AR TR ARBT T

(&%)

Within 90 days 90H A 272 31
91 — 180 days 91H £180H 4 -
181 — 365 days 181H £365H 318 30
594 61

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate

their fair value.

ENEZEREEERFERSE-
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18. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 18. Bt RERHEMENKE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEH ¥ NN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EEHF —EEZME —EZHF —TEMF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated)
AR®T T ARBTT AR TR ARETTT
(&%) (E7))
Accruals JE 5t RO 401 936 401 657
Other payables H fth & (< 3R 4,477 944 - =
4,878 1,880 401 657
19. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 19. ST EEE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE AT
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EEBEF —ZTEMEF —EEHF —ZTEMF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated)
ARBT ARET T ARBT R ARETF T
(E71) (E71)
Bank borrowings RITEE
- secured (note 29)  — A (Kiz£29) 3,000 = 3,000 -
— unsecured — miRR - - - -
3,000 = 3,000 =
The bank borrowings are settled within one year and RITEEEAR—FANEE TREBEES
classified as current liabilities. Ao
The carrying amount of the Group’s and the Company’s AEBERARREEZEEERREELATE
borrowings approximate to their fair value. BEfEE-
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20. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 20. EEHER I EESR
2005 2004
—EEhHEF —ETMEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
AR TR ARET T
(&%)
Transfer of technology for new drug R T B R T % R A B
and new drug development 11,666 12,714
Contracted pharmaceutical B A S B HE i
development services and clinical L Sl O
research services associated with ) 7 & AR 1 &
technology transferred by the Group B IR B 75 AR 75 13,434 15,822
Contracted pharmaceutical EAREBRITEEER
development services and clinical pAEINOF - L7)) ks
research services not associated with R 75 K & IR #f 3¢ iR 7%
technology transferred by the Group 14,035 5,346
Import registration services i i 351 1,198
Royalty income LS I ON 1,322 1,032
Sales of active pharmaceutical $HE B BB K D E
ingredients products 1,349 45
42,157 36,157
Turnover and contribution to profit from operations by HRAEEBEI% EXEEH R ER
segment has not been presented as over 90% of the B ) B AR 2 T BB AR A ORI T H
Group’s turnover was derived from the pharmaceutical FTE B ER LR E S E IR B 30 R
research and development, registration, application EIEEBEREEE RN 2B S
and testing in the PRC and all assets were located in #r

the PRC for both years.
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21. OTHER REVENUE 21. H At &=
2005 2004
—EEhHEF —ETMF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
ARB TR ARBT T
(&%)
Interest income A B WA 565 1,986
Government grant received FE WS & BY - 291
Sundry income WA 384 703
949 2,980
22. OTHER INCOME 22. Hlr A
2005 2004
—EEhHEF —EZMF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
ARB TR ARBT T
(&%)
Gain on foreign exchange bE 5 W & 191 =
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23. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of goods sold and

23. XHEER 74

AR EMEARITER 2 H DM

administrative expenses are analysed as follows:— /1N
2005 2004
—EEREF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
AR® TR ARET T
(&)
Depreciation e 1,456 1,293
Employee benefit expenses (note 24) & 8@ FIZ i (M 7£24) 10,590 8,621
Amortisation of new drug technology ~ T AT X 2
including in administrative T 5 R 0 8
expenses 348 115
Auditors’ remuneration Z 2 AN B & 361 550
Minimum lease payments paid under  Z&EHLE 1
operating lease =EHEE 1,785 1,800
Provision for trade receivables FEWE 5 IR R 4,594 968
Provision for (reversal of =8 m B
provision) work-in-progress (# o] £ 8) 1,386 1,549
24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 24. RERAZH
2005 2004
—EEREF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
AR® TR AR T T
(&)
Wages and salaries TENE® 9,196 7,916
Retirement benefits scheme R KAE A 5T &4 5k
contributions 1,136 705
Share-based payment AR 19 1= 5% 258 =
10,590 8,621
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&t

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emolument

(b)

24. BEEEANLZE (&)

(a) EEREREEZEMSE

Employee
Salaries and Provident share-based
Director’s fee bonus fund contribution payment Total
ESHe HER®A AREHE BERBHAR &t
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
“E2EREF -IINF -BBRE -TEINE -“ERRE -TINE -BBRE -ZTNE -ERRE -TINF
RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
ARBTR ARETT AR%TR ARSTT ARMTRT ARETT ARBTR ARETI AR%TR ARETT
(E31) (E31) (E31) (E31) (E31)
William Xia GUO #E - - 288 334 - - - - 288 334
Maria, Sui Mui SONG REf - - 159 151 - - - - 159 151
Uri, Tak Kau LAW EER - - - 191 - - - - - 191
David, Xuesong GAO EELN - - - 150 - - 65 - 65 150
FENG Tao i - = - = - - 22 - 22 -
WU Xin R - - - - - - 22 - 22 -
Nathan Xin ZHANG KR - - - - - - 22 - 22 -
Philip Pak Yiu YUEN 75144 - = - - - - 64 - 64 -
WU Ming Yu REH - - - - - - 21 - 21 -
Paul CONTOMICHALOS  Paul
CONTOMICHALOS - - - - - - 21 - 21 -
WANG Hong Bo TR - - - - - - 21 - 21 -
- - 447 826 - - 258 - 705 826
(b) AEBEHFMAL

Five highest paid individual

IEESFMALTEERE (ZZE

The five highest paid individuals included two

(2004: four) directors of the Company. The

emoluments of the remaining three (2004: one)

individuals were as follows:

FME)ARBNEF-EBR=%(-F

TE:—R) 20T

THE GROUP
rEE

2005 2004

—EEREF —EENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

AR TR ARET T

(E751)

Salaries and allowances e KOER 787 179
Retirement benefits scheme IR KAE A 5 81 4 5K

contributions 35 -

822 179
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24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individual (Continued)

The emoluments of each of the five highest paid
employees are less than HK$1,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,060,000) for both years.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any directors of the Company or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

24. EERAXZH (&)
(b) EEREHFMAL (&)

A2 &e &M EE R Z MR IEEE 2
2197 21,000,000 7T (K485 7 A
R #1,060,0007T) °

FR-AEERBERAAAREZHAS
RsFHHA LM EMMES ERMA
HEMARNE B 2 =R S AFE AR
RE {2 - T 2 IR SR 0 4F 179 D3R T BAY

loss of office. None of the directors has waived &
any emoluments in the year.
25. TAXATION 25. Bi1g
2005 2004
—EEREF —ZEETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
ARETR ARETTT
(E3)
The charge represents: i 18 37 #5 -
PRC enterprise income tax B S PTE R 887 881

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for, as
the Group had no taxable profits in Hong Kong for
both years. The Company’s subsidiaries are subject to
PRC income tax on their assessable profits.

PRC enterprise income tax is computed according to
the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

ERASERMEFEALEERTEES
E] B RB R A - 8 B B A S B A
B R RE 2 KB A R AR E FERRT A A
BAPBEMRER-

FEECERAEHRIDRETEARERZNER

ERE
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25. TAXATION (Continued) 25. HIE (#&)

Beijing Dezhong-Venture Pharmaceutical Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Dezhong VP”), Beijing Venture-
Biopharm Services Co., Ltd. (“V Biopharm”) and it &
ERE2EERFER DA, subsidiaries of the
Company, qualify as foreign investment industrial and
advance technology enterprises and are subject to
PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 15 per cent on
its income after offsetting prior year’s losses.
Furthermore, V Biopharm is exempted from PRC
enterprise income tax for three years starting from the
first year of profitable operations after offsetting prior
year'’s tax losses, followed by a 50 per cent reduction
for the following three years.

The charge for the year ended 31 December 2005
and 31 December 2004 can be reconciled to the profit
per the income statement as follows:

RAFRIME AR RERE 2 Y i
BERAR([ERER]) EtRE2BK
BENMEERAR([B2EX]) RERE
FEETEENMBAERARFTEIIEIEET
ErERRBRECEZEE AL ZEAQ
AIZWARKEBAEFE ZEIBRE BEN
15% 2 FEIBEMET I BERGHKE
HEEBAFEIRBEEEEAGGLE R
FleEaEsEREREBM=EFE 2+
BEEMEH TREE=EFEERS
50% 7t X o

RNEE-_EZRE+-_A=+—BEK=_ZF
TNE+ A=+ HIFEZRATHK
R 2w M E BRI

2005 2004
—EEHF —ETEME
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
(Restated)
AR TR AR T T
(E31)
Profit before taxation B 7 Al 4 A 6,403 11,480
Tax at the domestic B A BT 15 B A & 15%
income tax rate (ZEZWHF 15%)
of 15% (2004: 15%) FHE 2B 960 15 1,722 15
Tax effect on AAHIBIEE 2
non-deductible items ~ B F & 610 9.5 330 2.9
Tax effect on BERTIBA Z
non-taxable income MBEE (364) (5.7) (286) (2.5)
Tax effect of AIEREILE
unrecognised MIBEEZ
deferred tax assets B2 (117) (1.8) (22) (0.2)
Effect on tax BTH
exemption granted M8 AR 2B
to PRC subsidiaries BERIEE (202) (3.1) (863) (7.5)
Tax expense and AFEERBRAT R
effective tax rate EBRHE
for the year 887 13.9 881 7.7
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26. EARNINGS PER SHARE 26. BREF

126

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year of RMB5,644,000 (2004
(restated): earnings of RMB10,683,000) and the
number of 360,000,000 (2004: weighted average
number of 360,000,000) shares of the Company in
issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for
the year is based on the profit for the year of
RMB5,644,000 (2004 (restated): earnings of
RMB10,683,000) and the weighted average of
363,540,000 (2004: 363,540,000) shares (after
adjusting for the effect of the outstanding dilutive
options of 3,540,000 (2004: 3,540,000) shares under

the share option schemes of the Company).

ERERRBAMDIBEREEEMNARE
5,644,0007C (ZZZMF (F5)) BFMAR
#10,683,0007T) R FAR QR B EITRG
% B 360,000,0000% (=== P44 : hniE F15
#360,000,0000% ) 5+ & -

AFEESREBRFDBREBERNFE EFA
R#5,644,0007T (ZEZTWE (FS) : &F)
A R # 10,683,0007T ) & 0 # F 5 &
363,540,0008% (== Z 0 4 : 363,540,000
BR) ERXREZLRIEREFERTEZ
B B5E e 2 B8 AR 18 T 3,540,0004%

—ZTTPN4E: 3,540,000/%) D 2 & E
AEHE
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 27. BRAESHE

As at 31 December 2005, the Company operated two
share option scheme. A share option scheme was
adopted and approved by the sole shareholder of the
Company on 31 March 2003, pursuant to which the
Company granted certain share options to employees,
directors and other participants prior to the listing of
the Company on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”). Another share option
scheme was also adopted and approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 23 May 2003 (the
“Share Option Scheme”).

Both schemes were adopted for a period of ten years
commencing from 23 May 2003 pursuant to a written
resolution of the shareholders passed on 23 May 2003
for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to directors and eligible employees and other
participants. Under both schemes, the Company may
grant options to eligible employees and directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares in the Company. In addition, under the Share
Option Scheme, the Company may, from time to time,
grant share options to any contractor, supplier,

customer, agent or advisor, of the Group at the

discretion of the Board of Directors.

R-ZBZERF+_A=1t—HB ARAET
MR AR Bl AR B —RRNR_FF
=F=A=+— E%m%’ﬂ&ﬁt/ﬁ—lﬁaﬁﬂﬁf
HE B AR RER QRN R AAIE
R EMRTFES ﬁ%&ﬁ@/,\%&ﬁ
TERE (TEHRAMERAERER
g) ARARBERR_FTZE=FAA_T=
BERA RS —RE RS ([
&) -

RERRR-_ZFE=FAA_+=HAE8
ZEMRBER MEFEZRAFHI/E
—EE-FAA_tZRAEFTF HXE
BNRAEE AEREERAEMSEER
HEER K B - RIBZ M AR S AR A A]
AARBIRENBARAEREERES
RHBERE ARBARRAR KM LI AR
A REBREAESREFTENETER
AEBUERAME HER TP KL
) 1% i A
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon
acceptance of the grant of the options. The option has
no vesting period and each option gives the holders
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company.

(a) Terms and conditions granted of the options granted
and existed during the year

27. IR FESTE (&)
SHBRENVETEARZRERER S -

BETEFRBY SBRERTHEARR
—BRARE E BB M-

(a) FARHEREBREZRAR K KM

Number of
instruments Exercisable period
REZE 1THREH
Options granted to directors
BRTER 2 BRE
—on 20 June 2003 7,200,000 20 June 2003 - 19 June 2013
—RZZEZE=FXHA=-+H —TEE=FRAZTHE
—ET—=%,xA+NH
—on 2 March 2005 1,512,000 2 March 2005 - 1 March 2015
—-RZZEETREFE=H_H —ETERF=H=H=E
—E—h¥=H—H
Options granted to employees
RTEE 2B E
—on 20 June 2003 4,320,000 20 June 2003 — 19 June 2013
—ZZTT=F,A=+H —ET=FA=+H=E
—E—=%,XA+hH
— on 2 March 2005 2,530,000 2 March 2005 — 1 March 2015
—-—ZTRF=A=H —EETRFE=-AZH=E
—ARF=H—H
—on 14 December 2005 1,098,000 14 December 2005 — 13 December 2015
——_TZERF+-_A+HWH ZTTRF+ZATHmAZE
—E—hAB+=ZA+=H
16,660,000
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

27. B RESTE (&)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options are as follows:-

(b) BREHBRMEFIITEMBEMON:

2005 2004
(Restated)
—EEBEF —ZTEMEF
(&51)
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
prices Number of prices Number of
hnfEF 35 options pilik R options
TEE BREHR 1TEE B A
HK$ HK$
BT B TT
Outstanding at HA 4 1) R AT (E
the beginning
of the period 0.35 11,520,000 0.35 11,520.000
Exercise during HRLTE
the period - - = =
Granted during A
the period 0.52 5,140,000 - =
Outstanding B AR AT
at the end
of the period 0.52 16,660,000 0.35 11,520,000
Exercisable B AT T
at the end
of the period 0.52 16,660,000 0.35 11,520,000

The weighted average share price at the date of

exercise for shares options exercised during the

year was HK$ 0.40 (2004: HK$ 0.35).

A supplementary agreement has signed that

certain conditions should be fulfilled before

exercising the options.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2005
had an exercise price of HK$ 0.52 (2004:
HK$ 0.35) and weighted average remaining
contractual life of 9 years (2004: 9 years).

FRETEZEBRERITER B ZNEF
BB A040B L (Z T Z P& :0.35%8
JT) °

ERBRERTENAZK 2E TR
A GBI CE L

R-_EERFE+_A=+—HHEKTERE
T EEROE T (ZZEZT M
F:0.35%7T) HINEFLAFRENFERA
OF (ZTTWMF:9F) -
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(c) The estimated fair value of the options is measured
based on Black-Schole Model. The variables input

27. IR FESTE (&)

(c) BEREZMGFA

MR EERAFE

FEDEE DR —&F
At AR Z

into the model are as follows:— B
2005 2004
(Restated)
—EEREF —EENF
(E5)

Weighted average share price REtE B B2 in#EFEHRE HK$0.49 HK$0.42
at measurement date 0.49& T 0.427% 7T

Weighted average exercise price  fI#EFH1TEE HK$0.52 HK$0.35

0.52/& 7T 0.35% 7T

Expected volatility (expressed T8 HR I8 (FR218 71 5 — &F @ i 42.1% 421%
as weighted average volatility HEEEREXFERZ
used in the modeling of INHEF 19K 18 51 7R )

Black-Schole Model)

Option life (expressed as BREBSH (RENR— 10 years 10 years
weighted average life used ARATEEEEEXER 105 104
in the modeling of ZINHEFHE ML)

Black-Schole Model)

Expected dividends TEHA AR B - -

Risk-free interest rate 2 B 1| B = 3.9% 3.9%

Weighted average fair value A qu; BEAZ iniEFEH R FEE HK$0.31 HK$0.26
at measurement date 0.31 8 T 0.2678 7T

The expected volatility is based on historical %Eﬁﬂfﬁfilaa?ﬁﬁ%iﬂ?}z;\ﬁzﬁﬁ(J)Aj}l]$2§¥i’-]ﬂ

volatility (calculated based on the weighted SHREHE) FEHR BIRBENKRETE

average remaining life). Expected dividends are
based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. The condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share options
granted.

TBBABRIEHAEELRSR
2 fhEte

y B AT E

TR 2 AT & RIF R IR LR
MAERRHBCERB 2 AV E L E
MG REER L BEREER-
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28. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2005, work-in-
progress of RMB301,000 (2004: RMB2,625,000) was
transferred to new drug technology.

29. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2005, the Company and the Group
had pledged its held-to-maturity investment of
RMB28,275,000 (2004: unlisted investment of
RMB16,553,000) and no pledged bank deposits (2004:
RMB9,811,000) to a bank to secure bank overdraft
granted to the Group. No utilisation of the general
banking facilities at 31 December 2005.

30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and
buildings which fall due as follows:

28.

29.

30.

FRERS

HE_ZERE+_A=+—RHIEE &
M AR301,000T (ZEZWNF: AR
¥ 2 625,0007T ) B B = 37 s H il o

CEAEE

R_ZEERFE+-_A=+—8B X2 RAK
SEEHEBRRZIHAZIREARE
28,275,000 (ZEZEMF: 3k EMIKZE A
R #16,533,0007T) & I & B IR 1T 17 53X

—ZTZPFE: ARK9,811,0000T) ' MAEA
BYAEBRTEI 2R -R_ZTTHF
+ZA=tT—HB UEFHATH—KRRTE
&,

REBANEE
REEH AEBERBETATRELEHOH

BRI HEETZARKEBEAEER
Hia T

2005 2004

—EEhHEF —ZEZMF

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

ARBTR ARBT T

(&%)

Within one year —F R 2,730 1,785
More than one year but —FUAEERFER

within five years 9,874 7,261

Over five years A A F 4,337 3,840

16,941 12,886

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for its laboratories premises located at
ERERENFESHIF LR EENFZARKI173%
and B O M /& /8 K3E. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of ten years (2004: ten years) and rentals
are fixed for the lease term.

REMORBREASEHENAREY
(Rt REBEROES M3 ILRE
EXARBAKITIRLEOMEERNE) 2
ENEE - BHOFAFHEERSTF (ZF
ENEAF) MEOHRA B TIEE-
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group contributed to a local municipal government
retirement scheme for all qualified employees in the
PRC. The employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at the
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.

The total cost charged to income statement of
approximately RMB1,136,000 (2004: RMB705,000)
represents contributions payable to the scheme by the
Group during the year.

32. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, the Company had the following
significant transactions with certain related parties
which also deemed to be connected persons as
defined by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM:

3iL.

32.

iR 1K 48 R & &

AEBRMETEAERES R E TR
ARG EIH R B E REEHAREN 2
B € L R A A EE R RE B BURRE
E o —BEERREAEELREHRR T
R 2 W E T BIEHR AR RFEE 2 8
TS

R T H 2 B A4 A R #1,136,000
T (T &F: AR¥705,0005T) @ HEA
SEFEANGTEIEM ZH K-

BEXS
ARBREFERAEETERAL (AKR

BRIRIRES LR ZERRAIE
BEAL) 2ERR BT

(a)

Name of
Connected person Nature 2005 2004
BEALER HE —EEREF —ZETWEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(Restated)
AR® T ARBT T
(&%)
Sinoway Pharmaceutical Other operating income
B B - Disposal of property,
plant and Equipment - 199
HMEERA - HEDE BERRERHE
VP Inc. Revenue
— Contracted research and development,
pharmaceutical application,
registration and testing services 357 636

)
S B SR A

The above transactions were carried out in
accordance with the terms agreed by both parties.

Balances with these related parties as at 31
December 2005 are set out in note 14.

R e 3 RBEER G -

PR B TIIRET B E 2 R EST
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>D§¥1t
4 4
i M
W
>
H
N
@
i‘i’ﬁ
5
=
H¢
K



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2005

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2005 BZ=ZZHF+=-A=+—HLFE

32. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

In addition, the minority shareholder of Dezhong
VP has been entered into an agreement with the
Group in December 2003 and agreed to waive its
4.488% profit sharing in Dezhong VP for the three
years ending 31 December 2005.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

For the purpose of Group’s expansion in drugs
development, on 4 March 2004, the Group entered
into an agreement with Hainan Pioneer
Pharmaceutical Ltd (“Hainan Pioneer”), an
investee company of the Group for construction
of production plant in Hainan. The total
consideration was RMB3,740,000. RMB3,240,000
was paid 15 days after signing the agreement.
The remaining RMB500,000 was paid upon
completion. The production plant was registered
in the name of Hainan Pioneer and the Group has
the right to use for 20 years without further
charges. Further agreement would be signed if
the production plant is continuous to be used by
the Group. Such balance due from the investee
company was included in investment securities of
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2005.

On 8 July 2004, the Group had an investment of
RMB1,000,000 in Novaderm Inc. which
represented 40% of its share capital and the
director of the Group, William, Xia Guo has
beneficial interest. .William Xia Guo then borrowed
RMB1,000,000 from Novaderm Inc. for the purpose
of investment in Shanghai Profex-Venturepharm
Healthcare Co. Ltd (“Profex Venturepharm”), a
domestic owned enterprise. The share capital held
by William, Xia Guo in Profex Venturepharm was
pledged against Novaderm Inc.. Such transaction
constituted a connected transaction as defined
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM.

32. BEX S (#)

(a)

(#)

N EREE 2 LHBRFEARERR
—ZEE=F+ AN RERE
HA o ERB82EE_TTRF T
A=+ —HL=FE 24.488%%
o

HAEBBEALZRBEERR:

RASBBRAEYER N_ZTHF
ZANA AEBHEEEZRENT
Hainan Pioneer Pharmaceutical Ltd
([Hainan Pioneer] ) Bt A /B4 H 2
SERERI U ME -BARERARK
3,740,0007t ' E R E R & 8 156K X
+ AR % 3,240,000t - 2 BB A R
500,0007T E R TEX X T - £ E R FE
LAHainan Pioneerz & & & it ANEE
BRECR20EMB A EM#E—F
BR-MASEREFTRZEERS
BT — iR B EZIRED
RIZEBEHRTAZSZTERAF T+ A
ST —HBREEERGBRIRERS
7 o

RZZEZMFEFELANE AEEM
Novaderm Inc. £ & A R ¥ 1,000,000
T AEERERAR40%  MASEES
HErRERBEER R BEEEER
M Novaderm Inc.f& A A R ¥
1,000,000t AR ERBE A & X
Shanghai Profex-Venturepharm
Healthcare Co. Ltd( [ Profex
Venturepharm] ) 28 & 5 4 5 Profex
Venturepharm# & 2 kK A& # ¥
Novaderm Inc. ° & B 32 518K Bl R
EMRBIFFARERERL S
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32. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

33.

34.

35.

(d) Key personnel management

Remuneration for key personnel management,
including amount paid to the Company’s directors
and certain of the highest paid employee, as
disclosed in note 24, is as follows:—

2. BEXRS (&)

(d) TR2EEAR

M4BT EEEAB M (82
RENARREERETRR#FHESR
ZHRIE) R

2005 2004

—EEAHEF —ZETMF

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

AR TR ARETTT

(&%)

Salaries e 447 826
Short term employee benefit RHEERM - -
Share-based payment expenses  B&1p {4 7 B 5% 258 =
705 826

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

During the year, the Group did not receive government
subsidy (2004: RMB291,000) towards the research and
development projects. The amounts have been
included in other revenue for the year 2004.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As further explained in note 2 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of new HKFRSs during
the current year, the accounting treatment and
presentation of certain items and balances in the
financial statements have been made to comply with
the new Accordingly, certain
comparative figures have been reclassified and
restated to confirm with current year’s presentation.

requirements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the board
of directors on 27 March 2006.

33. LT & B

TR AN B A W ER R T 2 B9 R B 5 1B
ERE (ZTEZTWEF: AR 291,000
L) cEBBREER TN FERTAEM
A e

34. Lk E F

A0 00 Bt 7G5 R 3R P R 2P B R - | Y R AR AR
BB RE LR Bk B R E B HRRK
NETHE REHRZEHEETARET
FRCAREHRE -t BETHRAFE
ENSBEREN UANEARNFEZERT
o

35. fit ME BT A #R 3R

EEZgCR _TERF=A_t+tA#LE
BAIE R
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RESULTS 3

Year ended 31 December

BZ+t-BA=t+—-HLEE

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
ST F ZZTT-F ZTIT-F ZTTNF —FTIF
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
(Restated)
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
(27)
Turnover S 15,871 32,453 35,680 36,157 42,157
Profit before taxation BR 5% A1 71 8,847 19,550 21,994 11,480 6,403
Taxation IR - (237) (1,506) (881) (887)
Profit after taxation before BREG1& B R D&
minority interests AR 3R K 2 Al v A 8,847 19,313 20,488 10,599 5,516
Minority interests D e AR R (376) (186) (128) 84 128
Profit for the year AEE a7 8,471 19,127 20,360 10,683 5,644
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Year ended 31 December
R+=A=t+—8
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
—ET-4F —ZTT-F —ZTT=F —_ZTTWF —BEIF
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
(Restated)
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT AR%®TnR
(E7)
Total assets less current BEERRDAE
liabilities 14,538 38,056 91,031 102,135 114,975
Minority interests DER RS (555) (742) (870) (3,190) (3,054)
Shareholders’ funds BEES 13,983 37,314 90,161 98,945 111,921
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Notes to the financial summary:

The results for each for the five years ended 31
December 2005 have been prepared on a combined
basis to indicate the results of the Group as if the
Group structure, at the time when the Company’s
shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, had been
in existence throughout the years concerned. The
figures for the year ended 31 December 2001 and
2002 have been extracted from the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 June 2003. The results for each
of the two years ended 31 December 2004 and 2005
have been extracted from the audited consolidation
income statement as set out on page 62 of the financial
statements.

The combined balance sheet as at 31 December 2001
and 2002 have been extracted from the Company’s
Prospectus dated 30 June 2003. The consolidation
balances as at 30 December 2004 and 2005 have
been extracted from the audited consolidated balance
sheet as set out on page 60 of the financial statements.
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